
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

JULY 23, 2015  



 
 

 
Mayor Council Members  
Merle Aaron Allan Steagall 
City Manager Ray Calfee 
Darrell Boeske Andy Curry 
City Secretary Norman Funderburk 
Jason Stuebe David Pierce  
     

 
Agenda 

Humble City Council 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, July 23, 2015 6:30 P.M. 
City Hall Council Chamber, 114 West Higgins 

Humble, Texas 
 

Call to order. 
 

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. Consent agenda items which consist of ministerial or “housekeeping” items as required 
by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda and discussed by majority vote 
of the Council. 

 
a. Minutes – Regular Meeting June 25, 2015; Special Meeting July 17, 2015 
b. Financial Statement  
c. Current Invoices 
d. Quarterly Investment Reports 
e. Monthly Department Reports 
f. Correspondence 

 
3. Adoptions of Resolution 15-753 Amending the Downtown Improvement Program 

Guidelines.  
 

4. Approval of an Interlocal Agreement between the Harris-Galveston Subsidence District 
and the City of Humble to participate in the HGSD Water Conservation Education 
Program. 

 
5. Approval of Contract Amendment No. 3 between the City of Humble and ARKK 

Engineering in the amount of $154,965.00 to include additional roadway, utility and 
signal design work.   

 
6. Authorization to disburse $178,500.00 payable to Headway Estates LTD as 

reimbursement for the engineered fill and earthwork for the Costco Access Road.  
 



7. Nomination and Reappointment of Dr. Barbara Reichsmann, Guy Sconzo, Ph.D., and 
Larry Pearson to the Northeast Hospital Authority Board of Trustees to serve a new two-
year term ending on May 31, 2017. 
 

8. Adjourned. 
 

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas 
will be held on Thursday, July 23, 2015 at 6:30 P.M. at the City Hall Council Chamber, 114 
West Higgins, Humble, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit: See Agenda. 
 
Posted this 20th day of July, 2015 at 5:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
      
City Secretary 
 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 
the City of Humble, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 
correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas 
and the City’s website, www.cityofhumble.com.  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible 
to the general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on July 23, 2015 at 5:00 
P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of 
said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Humble City Hall on the 
following date and time:       by                   
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the  , day of    , 2015. 
 
 
      
Notary Public – Harris County, Texas  
 
 
 

 

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 
ARE AVAILABLE.  REQUESTS FOR ACCOMODATIONS OR INTERPRETIVE SERVICES 
MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS MEETING.  PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 

SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (281) 446-3061 OR FAX (281) 446-7843 FOR FURTHER 
INFORMATION. 

 
 

http://www.cityofhumble.com/


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2A 

 

MINUTES 

 

REGULAR MEETING JUNE 25, 2015 

SPECIAL MEETING JULY 17, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 06-25-2015 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

JUNE 25, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Council Member Allan Steagall 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Norman Funderburk 
    Council Member David Pierce 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
 Public Works Director Barry Brock 
 Police Chief Gary Warman 
 Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
 Police Lt. Delbert Dawes 
 Records Manager Betty Hogan 
 Firefighter John Gosselin  
       
VISTORS PRESENT: Linda Aaron 
 Juanita Steagall  
 Naomi Curry 
 Diane Pierce 
 Donnie McMannes 
 Arliss Bentley 
 Clinton Wong 
 Michael Harney 
 Jennifer Summer  
           
 Mayor Aaron called the Regular Meeting to order with a quorum present at 6:30 P.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 

Council Member Funderburk offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
 



Minutes 06-25-2015 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 
2A. MINUTES JUNE 11 REGULAR MEETING 
2B. CURRENT INVOICES 
2C. MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
2D. CORRESPONDENCE. 
 
Upon a motion made by Council Member Funderburk, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF DEVELOPMENT PLAT FOR TOWNSEN LANDING VILLAGE – SECTION 1, A 
SUBDIVISION OF 18.903 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED IN THE WHERRY B. ADAMS SURVEY, A-95 CITY 
OF HUMBLE, HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS’ 1 BLOCK, 1 RESERVE. 
 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval noting that it meets all of the city’s specifications.  Mayor 
Aaron said that he believed it was the most complete set of plans he had ever seen and thanked the 
developer. 
 
Upon a motion made by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve the Development Plat.   
 

4. APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 2 FOR THE 2015 CONCRETE PAVEMENT IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT – PACKAGE 1 IN THE AMOUNT OF $121,123.20 PAYABLE TO METRO CITY 
CONSTRUCTION, L.P. FOR THE INCLUSION OF THE REHABILITATION OF THE FIRST STREET 
SANITARY SEWER LINE FROM AVENUE C TO HOUSTON AVENUE.   
 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval saying that this will keep the city in front of the road 
project on First Street that is currently headed up by TxDOT. 
 
Council Member Pierce asked why the Changer Order was necessary.  City Manager Boeske stated 
that the First Street work is being contracted by TxDOT but that the city was responsible for moving 
the utilities; rather than going out for another contract it was in the best interest of the city to issue 
a change order to our existing contract with Metro City Construction.   
 
Upon a motion made by Council Member Curry, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve Changer Order #2 in the amount of $121,123.20. 
 

There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Regular Meeting of 
the City Council at 6:35 P.M. on Thursday, June 25, 2015.     

 
    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 ATTEST: 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



Minutes 7-17-2015 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

JULY 17, 2015 – 9:00 A.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Council Member Allan Steagall 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Norman Funderburk 
    Council Member David Pierce 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
 Public Works Director Barry Brock 
 Police Officer Will Domilos 
       
VISTORS PRESENT: D.G. McMannes 
 Matthew Costa 
           
 Mayor Aaron called the Regular Meeting to order with a quorum present at 9:02 A.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 

Council Member Funderburk offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

2. RESOLUTION 15-752 APPROVING THE INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, AND COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION, 
AND HEADWAY ESTATES, LTD. 
 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval of the agreement noting that the start date had been 
moved from July 15, 2015 to August 15, 2015.  He further informed the Council that the agreement 
included bringing water to the Costco site, which has already been completed, and the construction 
of the new road, which would be called Spring Creek Crossing and include turn lanes and a traffic 
signal. 
 



Minutes 7-17-2015 

Upon a motion made by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to adopt Resolution 15-752 and the Infrastructure Development Reimbursement 
Agreement.   

 
There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Special Meeting of 
the City Council at 9:05 P.M. on Friday, July 17, 2015.     

 
    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 ATTEST: 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2B 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Humble
Balance on Deposit, All Funds
For the Month June 2015

General Fund:

Fiscal YTD 
Earnings

Balance as of 
06/30/2015

Cash 440.20$            2,219,200.08$         
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 85,363.64         12,495,576.88         
Cash - METRO 515.30              6,274,898.33           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 33,480.40         10,884,388.80         

Total 119,799.54       31,874,064.09         

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:
Cash -                    4,418,083.06           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 31,136.25         4,839,767.80           

Total 31,136.25         9,257,850.86           

Photo Traffic Safety Fund:
Cash 202.69              1,794,922.17           
Brokerage CDs 2,016.44           502,381.75              

Total 2,219.13           2,297,303.92           

Hotel Tax Fund:
Cash -                    868,968.01              

Total -                    868,968.01              

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 2.01                  4,155.21                  
Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction 575.23              145,637.42              

Total 577.24              149,792.63              

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Cash -                    153,659.89              
Brokerage CDs 673.15              120,540.96              

Total 673.15              274,200.85              

Total All Funds:
Cash 1,158.19           15,729,731.54         
TexStar 2.01                  4,155.21                  
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 153,245.11       28,988,293.61         
Total 154,405.31$    44,722,180.36$       



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2C 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS

Water & Sewer Special Red Light Beautification Special 

Date General Fund Operating Fund Revenue Camera Projects TOTAL

6/19/2015 731.70                     731.70$                    
6/25/2015 272,732.41              201,950.82                   1,312.25                59,934.73           42,778.69               578,708.90$             
7/9/2015 97,428.88                73,920.28                     296.07                   1,508.64             928,903.18             1,102,057.05$         

-$                           

370,892.99$           275,871.10$                1,608.32$             61,443.37$         971,681.87$          1,681,497.65$         

MAY PURCHASE CARDS

87,484.75$            27,016.72 261.02 490.86 115,253.35$           



















Alexander, Joe 5/27/2015 5/28/2015 Clicks Tire Service In281-354-5269, TX 70

Alexander, Joe 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Small Engine SupplyHumble, TX 12.55

82.55

Bailey, Richard 5/11/2015 5/12/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 19.96

Bailey, Richard 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Dshs Regulatory Pr Austin, TX 126

145.96

Battenfield, Kris 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Meyers Elgin SmokehousElgin, TX 10.68

Battenfield, Kris 5/3/2015 5/5/2015 Freebirds World BurritAustin, TX 14.29

24.97

Baucom, Billy 5/12/2015 5/14/2015 Young S One Stop Humble, TX 195

Baucom, Billy 5/6/2015 5/7/2015 Autozone #1472 Humble, TX 9.78

204.78

Blake, Scott 5/14/2015 5/19/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 127.76

Blake, Scott 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Sams Club #6367 Humble, TX 101.15

228.91

Boeske, W 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 El Ranchero Mexican ReKingwood, TX 29.36

Boeske, W 5/12/2015 5/13/2015 Aaron'S Picture FraminHumble, TX 203.5

232.86

Brock, Barry 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Mister Car Wash #9 QpsHumble, TX 27.99

Brown, Damian 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 Petco 2427    63524276Kingwood, TX 85.97

Brown, Damian 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Meyers Elgin SmokehousElgin, TX 22.69

Brown, Damian 5/3/2015 5/5/2015 Freebirds World BurritAustin, TX 15.64

124.3

Campbell, Jason 5/12/2015 5/12/2015 Dx Service 281-457-4825, TX 833.81

Campbell, Jason 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Iws Gas And Supply Of281-540-5500, TX 140.17

Campbell, Jason 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 Sign Mart Of HumbleHumble, TX 120

1093.98

Cantu, Stephen 5/19/2015 5/20/2015 Ferrara Fire Apparatus225-5677100, LA 587.2

Cantu, Stephen 5/6/2015 5/7/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 62.76

649.96

Chambers, Vera 5/27/2015 5/28/2015 Lone Star Uniforms 08322378000, TX 818.45

Chambers, Vera 5/27/2015 5/28/2015 Lone Star Uniforms 08322378000, TX 62.85

Chambers, Vera 5/23/2015 5/25/2015 Comcast Of Houston713-341-1000, TX 6.03

Chambers, Vera 5/20/2015 5/22/2015 Weathertapsubs 8003375263, TN 83.95

Chambers, Vera 5/13/2015 5/13/2015 Comcast Houston Cs 1x800-266-2278, TX 15.52

Chambers, Vera 5/12/2015 5/14/2015 Publicdata.Com 800-839-7245, TX 85

1071.8

Coats, Carolyn 5/21/2015 5/25/2015 Party City 175 Humble, TX 195.62

Coats, Carolyn 5/20/2015 5/21/2015 Bubba Gump-KemahKemah, TX 46.16

Coats, Carolyn 4/29/2015 5/1/2015 Party City 175 Humble, TX 193.47

435.25

Coombs, Clint 5/7/2015 5/11/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 60.18

Coombs, Clint 5/6/2015 5/8/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 176.42

Coombs, Clint 4/29/2015 5/1/2015 Sign Mart Of HumbleHumble, TX 120

356.6

Corrales, Sergio 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Hctra Northeast Tag StHumble, TX 34.5



Cuellar, Angel 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 94.8

Cuellar, Angel 5/22/2015 5/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 15.86

Cuellar, Angel 5/20/2015 5/21/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 62.2

Cuellar, Angel 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725 281-446-3869, TX 76.98

Cuellar, Angel 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 Sears Roebuck   1417Humble, TX 199.99

Cuellar, Angel 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 29.85

Cuellar, Angel 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 29.94

Cuellar, Angel 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Direct Grass ServicesHumble, TX 121

630.62

Culp, Joseph 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Epson   Store 800-873-7766, CA 193.41

Culp, Joseph 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Officemax/Officedepot6Humble, TX 27.99

Culp, Joseph 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Paypal  Texasdivisi 4029357733, CA 145

Culp, Joseph 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Paypal  Texasdivisi 4029357733, CA 155

Culp, Joseph 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Humble Camera CenterHumble, TX 150

671.4

Davis, Ray 5/19/2015 5/20/2015 Texas Southern Testing07133137201, TX 30

Davis, Ray 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Leslies Pool Sply#1002Humble, TX 151.98

Davis, Ray 5/7/2015 5/8/2015 Small Engine SupplyHumble, TX 85.99

267.97

Elliott, Sandra 5/28/2015 5/29/2015 Kroger #318 Humble, TX 17.47

Elliott, Sandra 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 129.98

Elliott, Sandra 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Officemax/Officedepot6Humble, TX 449.95

Elliott, Sandra 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Lexisnexis Risk Dat 08883328244, FL 50

647.4

Emerson, Kevin 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Sign Mart Of HumbleHumble, TX 45

Fillmore, Steve 5/26/2015 5/27/2015 Officemax/Officedepot6Humble, TX 49.99

Fillmore, Steve 5/21/2015 5/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 5.61

55.6

Flores, Teodulo 5/27/2015 5/29/2015 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 648.9

Flynt, Michael 5/24/2015 5/25/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 167.35

Flynt, Michael 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 Robbins Chevrolet Humble, TX 39.47

206.82

Forbes, Steve 5/27/2015 5/28/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 4.99

Forbes, Steve 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 Autozone #1472 Humble, TX 19.99

Forbes, Steve 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 Holliday Marine Huffman, TX 706.26

Forbes, Steve 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Lonestarproducts 8666707951, TX 438.48

Forbes, Steve 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 599.94

1769.66

Franks, Joe 5/20/2015 5/22/2015 Grace Industries Inc Fredonia, PA 810.14

Franks, Joe 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Bearcom Sales 02147657166, TX 88

898.14

Ganyo, Mark 5/22/2015 5/28/2015 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel6147605227, OH 707.6

Ganyo, Mark 5/19/2015 5/21/2015 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel6147605227, OH 2801.07

Ganyo, Mark 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel6147605227, OH 13.69

Ganyo, Mark 5/7/2015 5/11/2015 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel6147605227, OH 613.06

4135.42

Gill, Patricia 5/22/2015 5/25/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 293.46

Gill, Patricia 5/19/2015 5/20/2015 Great Southwest Paper713-223-5050, TX 375



Gill, Patricia 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Great Southwest Paper713-223-5050, TX 1702.69

Gill, Patricia 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 24.58

Gill, Patricia 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 53.88

2449.61

Gonzalez, Victor 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 8.73

Gonzalez, Victor 5/14/2015 5/18/2015 Electronic Parts OutleHouston, TX 11.35

Gonzalez, Victor 5/14/2015 5/19/2015 The Home Depot #6985Houston, TX 10.9

Gonzalez, Victor 5/14/2015 5/18/2015 Regal Plastic Supply CHouston, TX 36

66.98

Green, Christine 5/26/2015 5/27/2015 Hectors Mexican RestauHumble, TX 259.25

Green, Christine 5/23/2015 5/25/2015 Walgreens #3025 Humble, TX 22.95

Green, Christine 5/7/2015 5/7/2015 Gaumard Scientific Co305-971-3790, FL 603.66

Green, Christine 5/1/2015 5/1/2015 Gaumard Scientific Co305-971-3790, FL 2323.16

3209.02

Hammock, James 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Embassy Suites DwntwnAustin, TX 228.85

Hammock, James 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Embassy Suites DwntwnAustin, TX 228.85

Hammock, James 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Meyers Elgin SmokehousElgin, TX 17.61

Hammock, James 5/3/2015 5/5/2015 Freebirds World BurritAustin, TX 14.29

489.6

Hastings Jr, Tommy 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Humble Camera CenterHumble, TX 53.75

Hawkins, Fred 5/21/2015 5/25/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 136.39

Hawkins, Fred 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 15.88

152.27

Hogan, Betty 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Helens Humble Flower281-446-3035, TX 303

Hogan, Betty 5/6/2015 5/7/2015 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 58.59

Hogan, Betty 5/6/2015 5/8/2015 Party City 175 Humble, TX 79.87

441.46

Hosler, Thomas 5/27/2015 5/29/2015 Hach Company Loveland, CO 34.19

Hosler, Thomas 5/22/2015 5/25/2015 Texas Southern Testing07133137201, TX 60

Hosler, Thomas 5/20/2015 5/22/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 347.43

Hosler, Thomas 5/19/2015 5/25/2015 Hach Company Loveland, CO 490.53

Hosler, Thomas 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 American Patriot IndusCypress, TX 733.72

Hosler, Thomas 5/7/2015 5/18/2015 Hach Company Loveland, CO 3056.51

Hosler, Thomas 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Sq  William Crawford IHumble, TX 800

Hosler, Thomas 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Officemax/Officedepot6Humble, TX 440.95

Hosler, Thomas 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 76.88

Hosler, Thomas 4/23/2015 5/4/2015 Hach Company Loveland, CO 2274.19

8314.4

Hottman, Adam 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Samsclub #6367 Humble, TX 105.72

Hottman, Adam 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel6147605227, OH 377.9

483.62

Johnson, Dolan 5/6/2015 5/7/2015 Tomball Auto Glass 281-255-5588, TX 170

Kellar, Chancey 5/7/2015 5/8/2015 Small Engine SupplyHumble, TX 46.53

Kellar, Chancey 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Small Engine SupplyHumble, TX 13.99

60.52

Killian, Elanna 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 American Screen GraphiKingwood, TX 17

Killian, Elanna 5/19/2015 5/20/2015 Auto Renewal Stick Austin, TX 2

Killian, Elanna 5/19/2015 5/20/2015 Harris Cnty Vehreg Houston, TX 8.5

Killian, Elanna 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Laz Parking 110185 Houston, TX 25



Killian, Elanna 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Ctyclk R Property Houston, TX 260

Killian, Elanna 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Heb  #498 Humble, TX 59.9

Killian, Elanna 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Panera Bread #4106Humble, TX 197.24

Killian, Elanna 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Heb Online 08009874438, TX 299.68

Killian, Elanna 5/14/2015 5/18/2015 Party City 175 Humble, TX 53.41

Killian, Elanna 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Kroger #190 Humble, TX 42.03

Killian, Elanna 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 Party City 175 Humble, TX 105.15

Killian, Elanna 5/12/2015 5/13/2015 Sq  Yummy Tummy PastriHumble, TX 110

Killian, Elanna 4/29/2015 5/1/2015 Laz Parking 110185 Houston, TX 12

1191.91

Killion, Ryan 5/19/2015 5/20/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 16.98

Killion, Ryan 5/12/2015 5/14/2015 Northern Tool Equip TxHouston, TX 157.96

Killion, Ryan 5/11/2015 5/13/2015 Napa Auto 0026449 Kingwood, TX 14.99

Killion, Ryan 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Industrial Disposal Su2102273441, TX 165.9

Killion, Ryan 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Industrial Disposal Su2102273441, TX 173.25

Killion, Ryan 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 Wood Alternator And StHouston, TX 225

754.08

Lee, Daniel 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 Leerburg 715-2356502, WI 1135.59

Lee, Daniel 5/11/2015 5/13/2015 Kiesler Police Supy Jeffersonvill, IN 453.03

1588.62

Legoudes, Melissa 5/27/2015 5/29/2015 Iacp 800-843-4227, VA 150

Legoudes, Melissa 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX -376.79

Legoudes, Melissa 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 53.82

Legoudes, Melissa 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 Gigi S Cupcakes Kingwood, TX 234

Legoudes, Melissa 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Office Depot #1079 800-463-3768, TX 96.34

Legoudes, Melissa 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 29.4

Legoudes, Melissa 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 6.99

Legoudes, Melissa 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 291.16

Legoudes, Melissa 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 40.58

Legoudes, Melissa 5/20/2015 5/21/2015 Hallmark Office Pr Houston, TX 304.96

Legoudes, Melissa 5/9/2015 5/11/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 360

Legoudes, Melissa 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 206.18

Legoudes, Melissa 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Lexisnexis Risk Dat 08883328244, FL 231

Legoudes, Melissa 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Rosewood Flower ShopHumble, TX 50

1677.64

Legoudes, Michael 5/22/2015 5/25/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 11.91

Legoudes, Michael 5/16/2015 5/18/2015 Motorola, Inc. - Onlin800-814-0601, IL 98

Legoudes, Michael 5/14/2015 5/18/2015 Tms Post Haste Copy &Humble, TX 64.28

Legoudes, Michael 5/12/2015 5/13/2015 American Screen GraphiKingwood, TX 68

Legoudes, Michael 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Pww Media Inc 717-691-0100, PA 299

541.19

Lemoine, Larry 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Autozone #1472 Humble, TX 16.56

Love, Kenneth 5/20/2015 5/20/2015 Galls Intern 859-266-7227, KY 329.82

Love, Kenneth 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 Gal Uniform&Equipment866-286-1358, KY 105.9

Love, Kenneth 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 Gal Uniform&Equipment866-286-1358, KY 59.95

Love, Kenneth 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 Gal Uniform&Equipment866-286-1358, KY 95.88

Love, Kenneth 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 Gal Uniform&Equipment866-286-1358, KY 36

Love, Kenneth 5/9/2015 5/11/2015 Galls Intern 859-266-7227, KY 158.85

Love, Kenneth 5/9/2015 5/11/2015 Galls Intern 859-266-7227, KY 275.98

1062.38

Macias, Mayra 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 239.96

Macias, Mayra 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 349.95

589.91



Martin, Gregory 5/11/2015 5/13/2015 Star Cleaners Humble, TX 18

Martin, Gregory 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Whataburger 897    Q26Seguin, TX 8.49

Martin, Gregory 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 La Quinta Inns  0921San Antonio, TX 519.55

Martin, Gregory 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 Longhorn Steak00053819San Antonio, TX 16.14

Martin, Gregory 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 Shell Oil 57546057506San Antonio, TX 37.05

599.23

Martinez, Fidel 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Mister Car Wash #9 QpsHumble, TX 10

Martinez, Fidel 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 91.16

101.16

Mccaa, George 5/19/2015 5/21/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 61.93

Mccaa, George 5/19/2015 5/21/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 99.96

Mccaa, George 5/14/2015 5/18/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 13.5

Mccaa, George 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 39.84

Mccaa, George 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 Astro Lock And Safe Humble, TX 75

Mccaa, George 5/12/2015 5/14/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 204.01

Mccaa, George 5/11/2015 5/13/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 16.78

Mccaa, George 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Ewing Irrigation Prd#1Humble, TX 487.5

Mccaa, George 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 15.8

Mccaa, George 5/5/2015 5/7/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 39.94

Mccaa, George 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 199.96

1254.22

Meadows, Gordon 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 329

Meadows, Gordon 5/7/2015 5/8/2015 Lansdowne-Moody SplendSplendora, TX 2852

Meadows, Gordon 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Moore Supply CompanyHumble, TX 23.36

Meadows, Gordon 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Champion Rentals Inc 1Houston, TX 85.5

Meadows, Gordon 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 199.31

Meadows, Gordon 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 1335.6

Meadows, Gordon 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 M D N  Enterprises New Caney, TX 33

4857.77

Michaud, Paula 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 2103.72

Michaud, Paula 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 651.47

Michaud, Paula 5/20/2015 5/21/2015 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 591.85

Michaud, Paula 5/20/2015 5/21/2015 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 129.53

Michaud, Paula 5/20/2015 5/21/2015 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 278.85

Michaud, Paula 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 004 Centurylink Ivr 877-290-5458, LA 6840.86

Michaud, Paula 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Fsi Centerpoint Energy800-967-9649, TX 28.32

Michaud, Paula 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Fsi Centerpoint Energy800-967-9649, TX 21.94

Michaud, Paula 5/12/2015 5/12/2015 Comcast Houston Cs 1x800-266-2278, TX 123.67

Michaud, Paula 5/12/2015 5/12/2015 Comcast Houston Cs 1x800-266-2278, TX 147.4

Michaud, Paula 5/12/2015 5/14/2015 Wm Ezpay 866-834-2080, TX 5435.68

Michaud, Paula 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Republic Services Tras08665765548, AZ 2210.64

Michaud, Paula 5/5/2015 5/7/2015 Wm Ezpay 866-834-2080, TX 558.79

Michaud, Paula 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 004 Centurylink Ivr 877-290-5458, LA 104.37

Michaud, Paula 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 004 Centurylink Ivr 877-290-5458, LA 63.87

Michaud, Paula 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 004 Centurylink Ivr 877-290-5458, LA 167.89

19458.85

Mittag, Jeremy 5/28/2015 5/29/2015 Dripworks Inc 07074596323, CA 161.1

Mittag, Jeremy 5/27/2015 5/28/2015 Fox Family Pools Humble, TX 36.95

Mittag, Jeremy 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 195.21

Mittag, Jeremy 5/25/2015 5/26/2015 Mister Car Wash #19qpsHumble, TX 16

Mittag, Jeremy 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Advanced Chute SystemBatesville, AR 224

Mittag, Jeremy 5/19/2015 5/20/2015 American Lifeguard Pro800-4458721, FL 73.97

Mittag, Jeremy 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 American Lifeguard Pro800-4458721, FL 20.85

Mittag, Jeremy 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Moosejaw 877-666-7352, MI 293.65



Mittag, Jeremy 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Gander Mountain Direct888-542-6337, NC 239.94

Mittag, Jeremy 5/7/2015 5/8/2015 Great Southwest Paper713-223-5050, TX 433.5

Mittag, Jeremy 5/6/2015 5/7/2015 Esp Farmtek 800-245-9881, CT 75.3

Mittag, Jeremy 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Fox Family Pools Humble, TX 156

Mittag, Jeremy 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Sign Mart Of HumbleHumble, TX 130

Mittag, Jeremy 5/2/2015 5/4/2015 American Lifeguard Pro800-4458721, FL 1009.49

3065.96

Moore, Sharon 5/16/2015 5/18/2015 Can Canonbussol Cbs800-613-2228, NJ 85

Moreno, Edis 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 14.44

Morgan, Cindy 5/28/2015 5/29/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 72.11

Morgan, Cindy 5/20/2015 5/21/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 146.06

Morgan, Cindy 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 85.59

Morgan, Cindy 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 66.45

Morgan, Cindy 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Office Depot #1080 800-463-3768, CO 12.58

Morgan, Cindy 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Office Depot #5910 800-463-3768, PA 6.49

389.28

Naquin, Leroy 5/18/2015 5/20/2015 Tms Post Haste Copy &Humble, TX 12.42

Naquin, Leroy 5/14/2015 5/18/2015 Tms Post Haste Copy &Humble, TX 20.31

Naquin, Leroy 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Moore Supply CompanyHumble, TX 23.85

Naquin, Leroy 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Young S One Stop Humble, TX 145

Naquin, Leroy 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 6.27

207.85

Neeley, William 5/28/2015 5/29/2015 Northside Auto Glass -Humble, TX 235

Neeley, William 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Ptp Transmission PartsHouston, TX 25

Neeley, William 5/7/2015 5/8/2015 Sq  Kwik Tow RepairPorter, TX 120.5

Neeley, William 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Allens Radiator CoolinPorter, TX 87.5

468

Niemeyer, Eugene 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 29.98

Niemeyer, Eugene 5/2/2015 5/4/2015 Www.Northernsafety.Com800-625-1591, NY 156.33

Niemeyer, Eugene 5/2/2015 5/4/2015 Www.Northernsafety.Com800-625-1591, NY 195.61

381.92

Nykaza, James 5/27/2015 5/28/2015 Lonestarproducts 8666707951, TX 104.94

Nykaza, James 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 21.87

Nykaza, James 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Sign Mart Of HumbleHumble, TX 985

1111.81

Ortiz, Raul 5/22/2015 5/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 15.97

Ortiz, Raul 5/22/2015 5/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX -15.97

Ortiz, Raul 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Sq  Casey Service Humble, TX 440

Ortiz, Raul 5/21/2015 5/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 45.94

Ortiz, Raul 5/18/2015 5/20/2015 Star Cleaners Humble, TX 32.9

Ortiz, Raul 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 134.57

Ortiz, Raul 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Party City 175 Humble, TX 2008.44

Ortiz, Raul 4/29/2015 5/1/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 102.55

2764.4

Outlaw, Gary 5/20/2015 5/22/2015 A-Line Auto Parts #25Humble, TX -17.5

Outlaw, Gary 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 A-Line Auto Parts #25Humble, TX 99.06

Outlaw, Gary 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Agape Overhead Doors AHumble, TX 189

270.56

Outlaw, Martha 5/8/2015 5/8/2015 Qdi Quest Diagnostics800-779-8857, PA 60.16



Peters, Richard 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 268.5

Phillips, Aimee 5/22/2015 5/25/2015 Mww Monster.Com 800-Monster, MA 385

Pitts, Joshua 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Total Rental Center Houston, TX 141

Pitts, Joshua 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Small Engine SupplyHumble, TX 2.99

Pizzitola, Michael 5/6/2015 5/7/2015 Kelley'S Country C Pearland, TX 43.25

Pizzitola, Michael 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Red Wing Shoe Store HuHumble, TX 170.99

358.23

Rhodes, Victoria 5/19/2015 5/22/2015 Pappas Dining & DeliveHouston, TX 1002.47

Rhodes, Victoria 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 American Screen GraphiKingwood, TX 2382.86

Rhodes, Victoria 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Office Depot #1214 800-463-3768, GA 40.49

Rhodes, Victoria 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 154.65

Rhodes, Victoria 5/12/2015 5/13/2015 Lso 512-870-8067, TX 31.5

Rhodes, Victoria 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Office Depot #1079 800-463-3768, TX 34.84

Rhodes, Victoria 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 61.75

3646.81

Richard, Dale 5/28/2015 5/29/2015 Hydraflo Inc 4098383624, TX 80

Richard, Dale 5/21/2015 5/25/2015 Fluid Meter Sales ServHouston, TX 34.85

Richard, Dale 5/19/2015 5/20/2015 Nsc Northern Safety Co800-631-1246, NY 235.61

Richard, Dale 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Nch Corporation 972-4380391, TX 280

Richard, Dale 5/14/2015 5/15/2015 Moore Supply CompanyHumble, TX 60.75

Richard, Dale 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Minuteman Press Humble, TX 378.23

Richard, Dale 5/12/2015 5/13/2015 Office Depot #262 Humble, TX 21.98

Richard, Dale 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Lowes #00750 Kingwood, TX 10.94

1102.36

Rodriguez, Jose 5/28/2015 5/29/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 76.84

Rodriguez, Jose 5/26/2015 5/28/2015 Boot Barn #181/BaskinsHumble, TX 29.98

Rodriguez, Jose 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 45.88

Rodriguez, Jose 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 41.16

Rodriguez, Jose 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Lansdowne-Moody SplendSplendora, TX 12.32

Rodriguez, Jose 5/12/2015 5/14/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 74.85

Rodriguez, Jose 5/11/2015 5/13/2015 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 27.44

Rodriguez, Jose 5/7/2015 5/8/2015 Sq  Rivera'S Auto ElecHumble, TX 200

Rodriguez, Jose 5/5/2015 5/7/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 70.55

Rodriguez, Jose 5/5/2015 5/7/2015 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 18.29

Rodriguez, Jose 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Lansdowne-Moody SplendSplendora, TX 148.5

Rodriguez, Jose 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Ray Despains Inc New Caney, TX 3.26

Rodriguez, Jose 4/30/2015 5/4/2015 Ray Despains Inc New Caney, TX 503.64

Rodriguez, Jose 4/29/2015 5/1/2015 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 21.34

1274.05

Schultz, Jacob 5/22/2015 5/25/2015 Sico America Inc. Minneapolis, MN 795

Schultz, Jacob 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 14.99

Schultz, Jacob 5/18/2015 5/20/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 514.67

Schultz, Jacob 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 127.13

Schultz, Jacob 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Paypal  Eastexlab 4029357733, CA 225

Schultz, Jacob 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Paypal  Eastexlab 4029357733, CA 225

Schultz, Jacob 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 B Dependable PlumbingCleveland, TX 2850

Schultz, Jacob 4/29/2015 5/1/2015 Cool Tech RefrigeratioHumble, TX 85

4836.79

Schultz, Michael 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Tceq Ind Renewal L Austin, TX 111

Scott, David 5/16/2015 5/18/2015 Belk #381 Fort Worth, TX 101.55

Scott, David 4/29/2015 5/1/2015 L A Police Gear Inc Valencia, CA -49.98

51.57



Scott, Randy 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 33.5

Scott, Randy 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Petco 479     63504799Humble, TX 12.99

Scott, Randy 5/12/2015 5/13/2015 Tractor-Supply-Co #040Porter, TX 25.96

Scott, Randy 5/9/2015 5/11/2015 Tractor-Supply-Co #040Porter, TX 22

Scott, Randy 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 39.88

Scott, Randy 4/29/2015 5/1/2015 Campbell Pet Co - OnliVancouver, WA 78.72

213.05

Smith, Ray 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Kelley'S Country C Pearland, TX 38.96

Squier, Eric 5/9/2015 5/15/2015 Comfort Suites OrlandoOrlando, FL 582

Squier, Eric 5/9/2015 5/11/2015 United    01626066303960800-932-2732, TX 25

Squier, Eric 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Firebirds Woodfire GriOrlando, FL 43.17

Squier, Eric 5/7/2015 5/11/2015 Red Lobster Us00008854Orlando, FL 42.02

Squier, Eric 5/6/2015 5/8/2015 Firebirds Woodfire GriOrlando, FL 53.9

Squier, Eric 5/5/2015 5/7/2015 Subway        00003111Orlando, FL 8.79

Squier, Eric 5/5/2015 5/7/2015 Firebirds Woodfire GriOrlando, FL 29.31

Squier, Eric 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Logans Orlando, FL 27.36

Squier, Eric 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Burger King #8060  Q07Orlando, FL 4.03

Squier, Eric 5/3/2015 5/4/2015 Pizza Hut 26488 Orlando, FL 34.19

Squier, Eric 5/3/2015 5/5/2015 United    01626063106964800-932-2732, TX 25

874.77

Stephens, Philisa 5/27/2015 5/28/2015 Antennagear, Llc 5132896521, OH 332.16

Stephens, Philisa 5/24/2015 5/25/2015 Ups 2924m35rbl6 800-811-1648, GA 7.07

Stephens, Philisa 5/24/2015 5/25/2015 Ups 2924m4hnabo 800-811-1648, GA 7.07

Stephens, Philisa 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 20943.06

Stephens, Philisa 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 149.88

Stephens, Philisa 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 83.47

Stephens, Philisa 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL -987.44

Stephens, Philisa 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 1242.54

Stephens, Philisa 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 It Parts Depot Golden Valley, MN 847.5

Stephens, Philisa 5/11/2015 5/12/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 179.58

Stephens, Philisa 5/8/2015 5/8/2015 Morpho Trak 08003462674, WA 2100

Stephens, Philisa 5/5/2015 5/6/2015 Pcnation/Officenation800-235-4050, IL 323.94

Stephens, Philisa 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Cdw Government 800-750-4239, IL 1049.14

Stephens, Philisa 5/2/2015 5/4/2015 Ups 294442lnm35 800-811-1648, GA 7.05

Stephens, Philisa 5/2/2015 5/4/2015 Ups 1z46jt400395011812800-811-1648, GA 15

26300.02

Stuebe, Jason 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Michaels Stores 1159Humble, TX 6.48

Stuebe, Jason 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Custom Built Awards02818526652, TX 89

Stuebe, Jason 5/13/2015 5/15/2015 Hobby-Lobby #0160 Humble, TX 26.69

Stuebe, Jason 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Standard Chair Of GardGardner, MA 444

Stuebe, Jason 5/7/2015 5/8/2015 Swag Brokers 4804993964, AZ 22.95

589.12

Taska, Allison 5/22/2015 5/22/2015 Comcast Of Houston713-341-1000, TX 111.96

Taska, Allison 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Lowes #00750 Kingwood, TX -59.88

Taska, Allison 5/5/2015 5/5/2015 Comcast Of Houston713-341-1000, TX 91.82

Taska, Allison 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 Lowes #00750 Kingwood, TX 142.22

286.12

Taylor, Tony 5/11/2015 5/13/2015 Burlngton Stores796 Humble, TX 13.98

Taylor, Tony 5/9/2015 5/15/2015 Comfort Suites OrlandoOrlando, FL 582

Taylor, Tony 5/9/2015 5/11/2015 7-Eleven 33172 Orlando, FL 26.53

Taylor, Tony 5/9/2015 5/11/2015 Hertz Rent-A-Car Orlando, FL 342.77

Taylor, Tony 5/9/2015 5/11/2015 United    01626066299336800-932-2732, TX 25

Taylor, Tony 5/9/2015 5/11/2015 Manchu Wok Orlando, FL 10.26



Taylor, Tony 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Firebirds Woodfire GriOrlando, FL 45.36

Taylor, Tony 5/7/2015 5/11/2015 Red Lobster Us00008854Orlando, FL 48.15

Taylor, Tony 5/6/2015 5/8/2015 Firebirds Woodfire GriOrlando, FL 59.59

Taylor, Tony 5/5/2015 5/7/2015 Subway        00003111Orlando, FL 8.79

Taylor, Tony 5/5/2015 5/7/2015 Firebirds Woodfire GriOrlando, FL 59.59

Taylor, Tony 5/4/2015 5/6/2015 Logans Orlando, FL 32.2

Taylor, Tony 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Burger King #8060  Q07Orlando, FL 7.87

Taylor, Tony 5/3/2015 5/5/2015 United    01626063106021800-932-2732, TX 25

1287.09

Tullos, Bradley 5/28/2015 5/29/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 60

Tullos, Bradley 5/28/2015 5/29/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 15

Tullos, Bradley 5/20/2015 5/22/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 13.17

Tullos, Bradley 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Stripes And Stops CompHouston, TX 126

Tullos, Bradley 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Sherwin Williams #7319Humble, TX 213.32

427.49

Turner, Kathy 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 2.29

Turner, Kathy 5/15/2015 5/18/2015 Office Depot #1127 800-463-3768, TX 415.62

417.91

Tworek, John 5/21/2015 5/22/2015 Dshs Regulatory Pr Austin, TX 126

Villa, Joel 5/28/2015 5/29/2015 Sherwin Williams #7319Humble, TX 41.63

Villa, Joel 5/13/2015 5/14/2015 Red Wing Shoe Store HuHumble, TX 148.74

Villa, Joel 5/11/2015 5/12/2015 Samsclub #6367 Humble, TX 327.32

Villa, Joel 5/7/2015 5/11/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 34.65

Villa, Joel 5/6/2015 5/8/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 35.94

Villa, Joel 5/5/2015 5/7/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 5.99

Villa, Joel 5/4/2015 5/5/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 5.99

Villa, Joel 5/4/2015 5/11/2015 Stripes And Stops CompHouston, TX -1375

Villa, Joel 4/29/2015 5/1/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 124.5

-650.24

Warman, Gary 5/6/2015 5/7/2015 Black-Eyed Pea #2027Humble, TX 17.88

Watkins, Wyatt 5/27/2015 5/29/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 35.91

Watkins, Wyatt 5/8/2015 5/11/2015 Blk Hchdfdn 7135666409, CA 62

97.91

Wrobliske, Edward 5/18/2015 5/19/2015 Best Buy      00002550Humble, TX 29.99

Wrobliske, Edward 5/1/2015 5/4/2015 Tlo Transunion 05619884200, FL 5.75

35.74



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2D 

 

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Balance      
as of 

04/01/2015
Purchases Sales

Change in 
Market Value

Dividends & 
Interest

Cash Activity
Balance      

as of 
06/30/2015

General Fund:

General Operating Fund:
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 14,280,957.42$   500,000.00$        (2,249,788.21)      (12,159.89)           26,815.45            (50,247.89)           12,495,576.88$   

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 14,632,096.52     499,797.22          (4,250,000.00)      1,647.39              9,368.92              (8,521.25)             10,884,388.80     

-                       

Total 28,913,053.94     999,797.22          (6,499,788.21)      (10,512.50)           36,184.37            (58,769.14)           23,379,965.68     

-                       

Photo Traffic Safety Fund: -                       

Brokerage CDs 502,045.75          -                       -                       336.00                 -                       -                       502,381.75          

Total 502,045.75          -                       -                       336.00                 -                       -                       502,381.75          

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 4,154.40              -                       -                       -                       0.81                     -                       4,155.21              

Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction 145,519.25          -                       -                       118.17                 -                       -                       145,637.42          

Total 149,673.65          -                       -                       118.17                 0.81                     -                       149,792.63          

Total General Fund:
TexStar 4,154.40              -                       -                       -                       0.81                     -                       4,155.21              

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 29,560,618.94     999,797.22          (6,499,788.21)      (10,058.33)           36,184.37            (58,769.14)           24,027,984.85     

Total 29,564,773.34$   999,797.22$        (6,499,788.21)$    (10,058.33)$         36,185.18$          (58,769.14)$         24,032,140.06$   

Note:  The quarterly report is in full compliance with the investment

strategy as established in the City's Investment Policy and the 

Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code.

City of Humble - General Fund
Summary of Investment Portfolio Activity

For Third Fiscal Quarter

04/01/2015 - 06/30/2015



Balance       
as of 

04/01/2015
Purchases Sales

Change in 
Market Value

Dividends & 
Interest

Cash Activity
Balance       

as of 
06/30/2015

Enterprise Fund:

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:   

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 5,352,270.60$     1,248,955.83       (1,501,463.36)      (4,552.18)             7,916.77              (263,359.86)         4,839,767.80$     

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Brokerage CDs 120,448.08          -                       -                       92.88                   226.85                 (226.85)                120,540.96          

Total Enterprise Fund:
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 5,472,718.68$     1,248,955.83$     (1,501,463.36)$    (4,459.30)$           8,143.62$            (263,586.71)$       4,960,308.76$     

Note:  The quarterly report is in full compliance with the investment

strategy as established in the City's Investment Policy and the 

Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code.

City of Humble - Enterprise Fund
Summary of Investment Portfolio Activity

For Third Fiscal Quarter

04/01/2015 - 06/30/2015



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2E 

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













































































































































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2F 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 
 
 

 
June 26, 2015 

Number 25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Governor’s Vetoes Include City-Related Bills 
 
Governor Greg Abbott has vetoed 42 bills passed by the legislature during the regular session. 
Ten of the 42 were city-related bills described in the League’s “wrap-up” Legislative Update on 
June 5. (Both the PDF and online version of that edition have been updated to reflect vetoed bills 
and other minor corrections.)  Those 10 vetoes are detailed below: 
 

 H.B. 2282 (Guillen/Uresti) – Property Tax Protests: provides, among other things, that 
an appraisal review board and chief appraiser must review the evidence or arguments 
provided by a property owner before a hearing on a protest.  

 
According to the governor’s veto message, “[t]he Texas Tax Code allows all property 
owners in Texas to bring an appeal in district court to challenge an appraisal district 
decision regarding their property. These appeals are important matters for property 
owners, who deserve a fair and predictable process by which to challenge the actions of 
appraisal districts. House Bill 2282 departs from the uniform, statewide rules governing 
appraisal appeals by allowing property owners in just one of the state’s 254 counties to 
file their appeals with a justice of the peace instead of a district court. Unlike district 
courts, justices of the peace generally do not serve an entire county; instead they serve a 
particular geographic district within the county. Yet House Bill 2282 would allow 
property owners to choose any justice of the peace in the county to hear their appeal. This 
would invite forum shopping and would allow a justice of the peace to make rulings 
about property in a part of the county he or she does not represent.” 

http://www.tml.org/legis_updates


2 
 
 
 

 
 H.B. 2775 (E. Rodriguez/Zaffirini) – Candidate Applications: provides that: (1) a 

single notarized affidavit by any person who obtains signatures for a candidate petition is 
valid for all signatures gathered by the person, if the date of notarization is after the date 
of the last signature obtained by the person; and (2) a candidate petition may be corrected 
and additional signatures presented after the petition has been initially filed, but not after 
the deadline for filing the petition.  
 
According to the governor’s veto message, “[t]he Election Code requires those seeking a 
place on the ballot for certain races to submit to the Secretary of State a petition 
containing signatures of registered voters who support the candidacy. House Bill 2775 
would allow candidates who submit deficient petitions to update their petitions in a 
piecemeal fashion, rather than requiring the submission of a single, legally compliant 
petition. This could increase the risk of erroneous or fraudulent petitions. To the extent 
there are concerns about the Secretary of State's current policies on candidate petitions, 
the Legislature should work with the Secretary of State's office to address this issue in the 
next session.” 

 
 H.B. 2788 (Springer/Perry) – Conservation Measures: allows a retail public utility, 

which includes a municipally owned utility, to require the operator of a correctional 
facility that receives water or sewer service from the utility to comply with water 
conservation measures adopted by the utility.  
 
According to the governor’s veto message, “Texas’ prison system and the many county-
level correctional facilities across the state should seek to conserve water whenever doing 
so is consistent with their core purpose – the secure and lawful incarceration of inmates. 
While water conservation is a worthy goal, House Bill 2788 goes too far by subjecting 
prisons and jails to the conservation mandates of local water utilities that do not share the 
correctional facilities’ penological mission. Ceding control of the state’s correctional 
facilities’ water use to local water utilities creates the potential for interference with a 
core function of government. If the legislature wishes to require prisons and jails to use 
less water, it should do so directly rather than outsourcing the decision to local water 
utilities. Moreover, this bill would mandate unfunded costs on state and local correctional 
facilities. Any savings touted through reduced water consumption can, and should, be 
realized today through prudent water conservation measures that are not driven by 
regulation.” 

 
 H.B. 3060 (Anchia/West) – Building and Standards Commission:  provides that, in 

addition to the authority in current law, a panel of a building and standards commission 
may order action to be taken as necessary to remedy, alleviate, remove, or abate, 
violations of ordinances relating to animal care/control or water conservation measures 
(including water restrictions).  
 
According to the governor’s veto message, “[l]ocal governments generally should have 
flexibility to respond to local concerns, including the need to conserve water. House Bill 



3 
 
 
 

3060 goes too far, however, by granting broad authority to local enforcement 
commissions to interfere with private property rights. Lawn-watering restrictions can 
already be enforced by fines. The additional enforcement authority provided by this bill 
would allow the government to insert itself too deeply into what a private property owner 
chooses to do on his or her own land. Local governments already have sufficient tools at 
their disposal to encourage their residents to use less water. 

 
 H.B. 3184 (McClendon/Menendez) – Victim-Offender Mediation Program: 

authorizes a city council: (1) to establish a pretrial victim-offender mediation program for 
persons charged with a misdemeanor or state jail felony offense against property; (2) to 
adopt administrative and local rules of procedure for the program; and (3) to collect from 
a participant a $500 fee for the program and $15 court cost paid to the municipal treasury 
for the purpose of funding the program. 
 
According to the governor’s veto message, “[m]ediation is a process available in civil 
lawsuits by which parties can work out their disputes without using courts. House Bill 
3184 imports the civil law process of mediation into criminal law, allowing for mediation 
between the victim of the crime and the criminal to take the place of prosecution by the 
State, even in some violent felony cases. This "victim-offender mediation" leaves out a 
key party in criminal litigation-the State of Texas. Criminal indictments in Texas allege 
that a crime has been committed "against the peace and dignity of the State." The State, 
not the victim of crime, brings criminal litigation against the defendant. And while 
prosecutors do seek justice for victims, their primary duty is to represent the broader 
public interest in deterring and punishing crime for the good of all Texans. Making 
amends with the victim of a crime does not absolve the criminal of his legal debt to the 
State. Mediation is not well-suited to the criminal context and should be reserved for civil 
cases.” 

 
 H.B. 3511 (Davis/Huffman) – Financial Statements: requires that financial statements 

filed by officials and candidates in cities with a population of 100,000 or greater contain 
information about certain community and separate property, and that the statements meet 
certain requirements if they are electronically filed.   
 
According to the governor’s veto message, “Texans deserve accountability and 
transparency from their public officials. House Bill 3511 weakens the ethics laws 
governing officeholder financial disclosures. I cannot allow that.” 
 

 H.B. 3579 (Alonzo/Rodriguez) – Expunction of Records: provides that: (1) a person 
who is convicted of and has satisfied the judgment for, or who has received a dismissal 
after deferral of disposition for, a fine-only misdemeanor, other than an offense under the 
Transportation Code or municipal ordinance, may petition the court for an order of 
nondisclosure; (2) the court shall hold a hearing on whether the person is entitled to file 
the petition and whether issuance of the order is in the best interest of justice; and (3) the 
clerk of a court that collects a fee for the petition shall deposit the fee to the credit of the 
general fund of the city.  



4 
 
 
 

 
According to the governor’s veto message, “I previously signed Senate Bill 1902, which 
increases the ability of those who have been convicted of misdemeanors to have their 
criminal records sealed from public disclosure. The purpose of that legislation is to 
expand the employment prospects of individuals whose minor criminal records may be 
unduly limiting their ability to pursue an honest living. 
 
House Bill 3579 has a similar goal, but it goes too far by allowing courts to expunge 
dismissed criminal charges – including serious felony charges – even when the defendant 
was convicted of other, related charges. This would be problematic for two reasons. First, 
dismissal of a criminal charge is not necessarily an indicator of the defendant's innocence 
of that crime, particularly when a multi-charge arrest results in a plea agreement. Second, 
unlike orders of non-disclosure, which seal records from public view, expunction seals 
the records even from law enforcement. Under House Bill 3579, even those convicted of 
serious felonies could have parts of their criminal record expunged. This would deprive 
law enforcement of information about the offense history of habitual criminals, which 
may be useful in the investigation of future crimes.” 

 
 H.B. 4103 (Guillen/Garcia) – Judges: provides that a municipal judge who continues to 

serve because the city council failed to take action to remove or reappoint the judge as 
required by law may continue to perform the duties of the office without taking an 
additional oath of office.  
 
According to the governor’s veto message, “[t]he Texas Constitution requires all elected 
or appointed officers to take the following oath: “I, do solemnly swear (or affirm), that I 
will faithfully execute the duties of the office of the State of Texas, and will to the best of 
my ability preserve, protect, and defend the Constitution and laws of the United States 
and of this State, so help me God.” The oath is commonly re-taken when an existing 
officeholder begins a new term. House Bill 4103 would exempt municipal judges from 
the need to take the oath for a subsequent term of office. Judges, of all offices, should 
never be excused from the obligation to swear to preserve, protect, and defend the 
Constitution.” 

 
 S.B. 1034 (Rodriguez/Miller) – Voting by Mail: provides that: (1) when a voter cancels 

an application for a ballot by mail, the cancellation does not extend to a subsequent 
election; (2) a person eligible to submit an application for a ballot to be voted by mail on 
the grounds of age or disability may apply to receive all ballots in an even numbered year 
on the same application submitted for a ballot in the November general election of an odd 
year; and (3) the secretary of state by rule may redesign the official carrier envelope by 
moving all the textual material to a separate sheet and styling the signature box to insure 
that a voter is instructed to and must sign over the flap.  
 
According to the governor’s veto message, “[t]he integrity of the vote-by-mail process 
must be strengthened, not called into question. Amendments added to Senate Bill 1034 
late in the legislative process would create confusion as to how counties should 



5 
 
 
 

administer mail-in ballot applications. To ensure this important matter is addressed with 
the clarity it deserves, the Legislature should reconsider the issue and eliminate the 
uncertainty and ambiguity contained in this bill.” 
 

 S.B. 1408 (Lucio/T. King) – Community Development Grant Program: provides 
that:  (1) the Texas Department of Agriculture, subject to the availability of funds, must 
create a community development matching grant program to assist in financing various 
activities, including trade-related initiatives, renewable energy projects, water or 
wastewater infrastructure projects, and economic development projects; and (2) a city is 
eligible for a matching grant if the city is in a nonentitlement area as defined under the 
federal community development block grant nonentitlement program and in good 
standing with the department and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development.  
 
According to the governor’s veto message, “Senate Bill 1408 creates new authorities to 
issue state funds to local units of governments similar to, and in some cases identical to, 
grants already made under the federal Community Development Block Grant program. 
The stated intent of the new programs is to offset reductions in federal funding with new 
state funding. Our federal government's addiction to spending Texas taxpayer dollars 
must be brought under control, and when it is, the State of Texas should not find ways to 
tax our citizens to continue funding services our federal elected officials have deemed 
worthy of curtailing.” 

 
 

U.S. Supreme Court Further Restricts Municipal Sign 
Regulations 

 
On June 18, the U.S. Supreme Court issued its opinion in Reed v. Town of Gilbert. The opinion 
follows a continuing judicial trend of limiting municipal regulations governing signs and 
billboards. The opinion concludes that ordinance provisions containing content-based restrictions 
are likely unconstitutional.    
 
The Town of Gilbert, Arizona, enacted a sign ordinance that defined various types of signs and 
restricted the different types of signs in different ways.  For example, the ordinance included 
definitions for temporary directional signs, ideological signs, and political signs.  Based on the 
type of sign, it then limited how long the sign could be posted.   (Temporary directional signs 
could be posted no sooner than 12 hours before an event and for one hour after the event, but 
ideological or political signs could be posted for much longer.)   
 
A church in the town regularly changed the location of its services.  Each week, the church used 
temporary directional signs to guide parishioners to the appropriate location.  The signs were in 
place longer than allowed by the town’s ordinance, and the town cited the church for the 
violations.   
 

http://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/14pdf/13-502_9olb.pdf


6 
 
 
 

The church sued the town, arguing that the shortened time frame for temporary directional signs 
versus the longer time frame for ideological and other signs was a “content-based” restriction on 
speech that is prohibited by the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.  The town countered 
that the shorter time frame for temporary directional signs was not content-based because 
anyone’s temporary directional sign had to follow the same restrictions, not just churches.  
 
The Court held that the ordinance’s varying durations for posting based on the type of sign was 
based on the content of the sign because a city employee had to read the sign to enforce the 
ordinance. When a restriction on speech is content-based (as opposed to a reasonable time, place, 
or manner restriction,) it will be upheld only if a city can show that the restriction is “narrowly-
tailored to meet a compelling governmental interest.”  That test is referred to by the courts as 
“strict scrutiny.” A law or ordinance that is subject to strict scrutiny rarely survives a first 
amendment analysis.        
 
The Court invalidated the ordinance because the town did not prove that the content-based 
distinction was narrowly tailored to achieve the town’s interests of aesthetics and traffic safety.  
As support for its position, the court noted that the ordinance allowed a great number of signs to 
be placed for long periods of time.  That fact, in-and-of-itself, refuted the town’s stated interests 
of aesthetics and traffic safety.  Moreover, the court concluded that the various exceptions in the 
ordinance for certain signs made the restriction of other signs insupportable.   
 
As a practical matter, the opinion means that any provision in a sign ordinance requiring a city 
employee to read a sign before deciding whether it is in compliance subjects the ordinance to the 
strict scrutiny test.   That heightened review affects every city’s ability to restrict political signs 
and could even affect a city’s ability to restrict offsite signs, like billboards, differently than 
onsite signs.  More troubling is that restrictions based on the commercial versus non-commercial 
messages on a sign could be affected.   
 
An ordinance can arguably still prohibit all signs on city property, including city rights-of-way, 
and can limit the size, building materials, and other aesthetic aspects of a sign.  For example, a 
city could still ban all billboard-sized signs, but it would have a harder time allowing some 
billboards and not others if a differentiation is based on the content of the billboard.  
 
Each city should review its sign ordinance in light of this opinion.   If the ordinance contains any 
content-based restrictions, the city should ensure that they are narrowly tailored to meet the 
city’s compelling governmental interests.  More information about the effects of Reed will be 
forthcoming as attorneys further analyze the holding.  Please contact Laura Mueller in the TML 
legal department at laura@tml.org or 512-231-7400 with questions.   
 
 

TxDOT Unveils Local Project Toolkit 
 
The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is currently working with more than 200 
local governments on more than 900 active local government (LG) projects.  Those projects 
include: (1) signal timing upgrades on urban streets; (2) hike and bike trails; (3) adding 

mailto:laura@tml.org


7 
 
 
 

sidewalks near elementary schools; (4) adding managed lanes to an urban freeway; and (5) 
performing access-management studies. 
 
Developing those local transportation projects in conformance with the numerous laws and 
regulations applicable to the projects can be complex and time-consuming.  In an effort to 
facilitate development processes for local governments that use state or federal funding for local 
transportation projects, TxDOT has created an online toolkit designed to simplify the required 
steps of project development. 
 
The heart of the toolkit is a web portal that leads project personnel to the point in the 
development process where they are currently working. From this point, they can link directly to 
a new “LG Projects Policy Manual, the new LG Project Management Guide, and the new LG 
Project Workbook.” 
 
Each of those resources serves a unique purpose: (1) the policy manual includes laws, 
regulations, and policies that define why a local government must take a certain action; (2) the 
management guide includes procedures explaining what action each agency must perform; and 
(3) the workbook includes checklists, forms, and other tools representing best practices on how 
to successfully perform each action.  Each of the documents has direct links to applicable federal 
and state laws and regulations, internal/external websites and online manuals, and 
internal/external forms and tools.  
 
Rather than needing to know where to find applicable sections of the federal law, state law, 
TxDOT policy, and available tools and forms, this new online toolkit allows every person 
involved in an LG project to navigate directly to anything needed to those items.   
 
 

Resolutions for the 2015 TML Annual Conference 
 
The legislative efforts of TML are guided by its members.  That guidance comes in the form of 
resolutions that are submitted by member cities, TML regions, TML affiliates, and TML 
committees.  If your city has a legislative issue that it would like TML to consider, please submit 
it in accordance with the following instructions.   
 
The TML Constitution states that resolutions for consideration at the Annual Conference must be 
submitted to the TML headquarters 45 calendar days prior to the first day of the Annual 
Conference. For 2015, this provision means that resolutions from any member city, TML region, 
or TML affiliate must arrive at the TML headquarters no later than 5:00 p.m. on August 10, 
2015. 
 
The TML Board of Directors has adopted several procedures governing the resolutions process. 
Please review the following items carefully and thoroughly. 

 
1. No resolution may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee 

unless it has prior approval of: (a) the governing body of a TML member 

http://www.txdot.gov/government/processes-procedures/lgp-toolkit.html


8 
 
 
 

city; (b) the governing body or membership of a TML affiliate, or (c) the 
membership of a TML region at a regional meeting. 
 

2. TML member cities, regions, and affiliates that wish to submit a resolution 
must complete a resolution cover sheet. The cover sheet is available here. 
Please feel free to make as many copies of this cover sheet as you desire.  
The cover sheet must be attached to the resolution throughout each step of 
the resolutions process. 

 
3. It is recommended that any resolution state one of four categories to better 

direct League staff.  Those categories are: 
 

 Seek Introduction and Passage means that the League will attempt to 
find a sponsor, will provide testimony, and will otherwise actively 
pursue passage. Bills in this category are known as “TML bills.”   

 
 Support means the League will attempt to obtain passage of the 

initiative if it is introduced by a city or some other entity.  
 

 Oppose. 
 

 Take No Position. 
 
Please see the 2015-2016 TML Legislative Policy Development Process 
for more information. 
 

4. Resolutions submitted will be thoroughly discussed at the TML Annual 
Conference.  The Resolutions Committee is appointed by the TML 
President and is made up of city officials from TML member cities across 
the state. 
 

5. The city, region, or affiliate that submits a resolution is encouraged to send 
a representative to the Resolutions Committee meeting to explain the 
resolution. The Resolutions Committee will meet at 2:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday, September 22, 2015, at the Henry B. Gonzalez Center in San 
Antonio. 

 
If the procedures described above are not followed for any given resolution, that resolution is 
likely to be referred to some other TML committee for further study. In that case, the resolution 
would not be adopted during the 2015 conference. 
 
Under the TML Constitution, resolutions received after the deadline of August 10, 2015, must 
not only have the attached cover sheet, but also must “state the reason precluding timely 
submission.” These late resolutions may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee at 

http://www.tml.org/p/2015%20Resolution%20Cover%20sheet.doc
http://www.tml.org/p/2015_TML_Policy_Process.pdf


9 
 
 
 

the Annual Conference only if two-thirds of the Committee members present and voting agree to 
suspend the submission rule and consider the resolution. 
 
Resolutions may be submitted by mail, fax, or email to Scott Houston, Deputy Executive 
Director and General Counsel, at: 
 
1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400 
Austin, Texas  78754 
Fax: 512-231-7490 
Email:  shouston@tml.org 
 
If you have any questions or would like any assistance, please call 512-231-7400 at any time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No 

other person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of 

this document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 

mailto:shouston@tml.org


1 
 
 
 

 
July 3, 2015 
Number 26 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Local Sales Tax Bill Gives Cities Increased Financial Flexibility 

 
On June 20, Governor Abbott signed H.B. 157 (Larson/Eltife) into law.  The bill authorizes a 
city to hold an election to reallocate sales tax revenue.   By doing so, it allows a city to 
determine whether dedicated sales taxes should be increased or decreased, or whether a general 
revenue sales tax better serves its needs.  (The bill does not allow an increase above the two 
percent local cap.  It authorizes reallocation by election within a percentage that is below that 
cap.)   
 
More specifically, the bill provides that: (1) a city may hold an election to impose a dedicated 
sales and use tax for sports and venue districts, crime control and prevention districts, economic 
development corporations, property tax relief, or street maintenance at any rate that is an 
increment of at least one-eighth of one percent and that would not result in a combined rate that 
exceeds the maximum local sales and use tax rate of two percent; and (2) a city may hold an 
election to impose its general sales and use tax at any rate that is an increment of at least one-
eighth of one percent and that would not result in a combined rate that exceeded the maximum 
local sales and use tax rate of two percent.  
 

http://www.capitol.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/pdf/HB00157F.pdf#navpanes=0


2 
 
 
 

The state’s sales tax rate is 6.25 percent.  Cities, counties, and some special purpose districts may 
impose sales taxes up to an additional two percent.  The total sales tax rate can’t exceed 8.25 
percent in any area. House Bill 157 leaves all of those limits in place, but it authorizes a city to 
hold an election to reallocate sales tax revenue within the two percent local sales tax cap. In a 
nutshell, the bill allows a city to assess its funding priorities and reallocate the distribution of its 
general and dedicated sales taxes, so long as the total local tax rate does not exceed two percent.  
 
When the legislature authorized cities to adopt a general revenue sales tax in 1967, it provided 
that the rate of the general revenue sales tax must be set at one percent—no higher and no lower. 
House Bill 157 changes that. When the bill becomes effective on September 1, cities will be able 
to call an election to increase or decrease their general sales tax rate in any increment of one-
eighth of one percent. 
 
House Bill 157 also gives cities the ability to adjust the rates of some of their dedicated sales 
taxes. In contrast to the general revenue sales tax, the revenue from which can be used for almost 
any purpose, cities also are authorized to hold elections to adopt sales taxes that may only be 
used for specific, dedicated purposes. Under current law, these dedicated sales taxes are capped 
at certain amounts. For instance, an economic development corporation sales tax may not exceed 
one-half of one percent. Similarly, the street maintenance sales tax may not exceed one-fourth of 
one percent.  House Bill 157 essentially removes the current caps on the dedicated sales taxes for 
venue districts, crime control and prevention districts, economic development corporations, 
property tax relief, and street maintenance, and authorizes a city to hold an election to increase or 
decrease these dedicated sales taxes in any increment of one-eighth of one percent.  
 
How might the bill benefit your city? Let’s say a city currently has a general revenue sales tax of 
one percent, a Type B economic development corporation sales tax of one-half of one percent, a 
street maintenance sales tax of one-fourth of one percent, and a sales tax for property tax relief of 
one-fourth of one percent.  That’s a combined sales tax rate of 8.25 percent (6.25 percent for the 
state, and 2 percent for the city).  When the bill becomes effective, the city could call a special 
election to reallocate all of those city sales taxes in a way that might make more financial sense. 
The city may wish to hold an election, for instance, to have the entire two percent go towards 
general revenue and repeal all other dedicated sales taxes. Alternatively, the city could have an 
election to have one percent go towards general revenue, and the remaining one percent going to 
property tax relief. Or the city could have a ballot proposition to repeal the street maintenance 
sales tax and have the one-fourth of one percent be dedicated towards the economic development 
corporation.    
 
(Note that H.B. 157 gives cities the ability to hold an election to reallocate or adopt city sales 
taxes. Local sales taxes that have been adopted by other local governments that have overlapping 
jurisdiction with a city cannot be repealed or reallocated by city action.) 
 
House Bill 157 passed both houses of the Texas Legislature with very little fanfare and minimal 
opposition. Despite the relative lack of attention paid to it throughout the session, it will likely be 
considered as one of the most beneficial city bills in recent years.  
 



3 
 
 
 

City officials considering a change in their city sales taxes are encouraged to consult with their 
city attorneys. Please contact Bill Longley, Legislative Counsel, with questions at 512-231-7400 
or bill@tml.org.   
 
 

U.S. Supreme Court Highlights: 
What You Need to Know and How Your City Will be Affected 

 
The Texas Municipal League works closely with an organization known as the State and Local 
Legal Center (SLLC) to ensure that city interests are protected at the U.S. Supreme Court.   

The SLLC files amicus curiae briefs in support of states and local governments at the Supreme 
Court and provides other assistance in connection with Supreme Court litigation.  Since 1983, 
the SLLC has filed over 300 amicus briefs in the Supreme Court. 

Lisa Soronen, the SLLC’s executive director, has prepared excellent summaries of the recently-
released Supreme Court opinions that affect cities.  Those summaries are available here on the 
National League of Cities website, and include recent cases related to same-sex marriage, 
regulation of signs, the Affordable Care Act, the Fair Housing Act, government speech, religious 
accommodation, and asset forfeiture.   
 
The League will provide additional analysis, such as the same-sex marriage Q&A elsewhere in 
this edition, in the coming weeks. 
 
 

U.S Supreme Court’s Same-Sex Marriage Opinion: 
What it means for Cities 

 
In a 5-4 decision written by Justice Kennedy, the U.S. Supreme Court held on June 26, 2015, that 
same-sex couples have a constitutional right to marry. As a result of the opinion in Obergefell v. 

Hodges, state laws and court decisions banning same-sex marriage are now invalid.   
 
Justice Kennedy stated in the majority opinion that “[n]o union is more profound than marriage, 
for it embodies the highest ideals of love, fidelity, devotion, sacrifice, and family.”  More 
specifically, the majority opinion offers four principles that demonstrate why the fundamental 
right to marry applies to same-sex couples. First, the right to choose who you marry is “inherent 
in the concept of individual autonomy.” Second, because the right to marry is “unlike any other 
in its importance[,]” it should not be denied to any two-person union. Third, marriage between 
same-sex couples safeguards children and families the same as it does for opposite-sex couples. 
Finally, marriage is a keystone of American social order from which no one should be excluded. 
 
Whether a city official supports or opposes the conclusion in the opinion, it leads to a number of 
possible legal issues.  League staff has prepared a Q&A to provide a basic framework within 

mailto:bill@tml.org
http://www.statelocallc.org/
http://www.statelocallc.org/
http://citiesspeak.org/2015/06/26/supreme-court-highlights-part-2-what-you-need-to-know-and-how-your-city-will-be-affected/
http://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/14pdf/14-556_3204.pdf
http://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/14pdf/14-556_3204.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/2015%20same%20sex%20legalqa.pdf


4 
 
 
 

which city officials, in consultation with their local legal counsel, can decide how to locally 
implement the opinion.    
 
Please contact Laura Mueller, assistant general counsel, at 512-231-7400 or laura@tml.org with 
questions.  
 
 

Cities and Firearms 
 
During the 2015 Legislative Session, the Texas Legislature passed House Bill 910 and Senate 
Bill 11.  House Bill 910 allows a license holder to “open carry” a handgun in a belt or shoulder 
holster beginning on January 1, 2016, and S.B. 11 allows a license holder, with exceptions, to 
carry a concealed handgun on a college campus beginning on August 1, 2016.   
 
Those bills, combined with more frequent rallies and gatherings dedicated to the open carry of 
rifles, has led to confusion about the law in Texas. The League’s legal department has prepared a 
paper, which in includes a chart, explaining state law and municipal authority over the regulation 
of “firearms” (e.g., rifles, shotguns, and handguns) in Texas.   
 
 

Texas Attorney General Sues EPA 
 
This week, Texas attorney general Ken Paxton sued the federal Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA).  His lawsuit seeks to overturn the EPA’s recently-released “Waters of the U.S.” 
rule. The rule defines which bodies of water are subject to regulation under the federal Clean 
Water Act.  
 
According to the rule, “waters of the United States” means: 
 

1. All waters that are currently used, were used in the past, or may be susceptible to use in 
interstate or foreign commerce, including all waters that are subject to the ebb and flow 
of the tide (this definition is commonly referred to as “traditional navigable waters”). 

2. All interstate waters, including interstate wetlands. 
3. The territorial seas. 
4. All impoundments of waters otherwise identified as waters of the United States. 
5. All “tributaries” of waters identified in 1-3, above. 
6. All waters “adjacent” to a water identified in 1-5 above, including wetlands, ponds, lakes, 

oxbows, impoundments, and similar waters. 
7. Prairie potholes, Carolina bays and Delmarva bays, Pocosins, western vernal pools, and 

Texas coastal prairie wetlands if they are determined, on a case-specific basis, to have a 
“significant nexus” to a water identified in 1-3 above. 

8. All waters located within the 100-year floodplain of water identified in 1-3 above and all 
waters located within 4,000 feet of the high tide line or ordinary high water mark of a 

mailto:laura@tml.org
http://www.tml.org/p/July%202015%20QA%20-%20MunicipalGunRegulation%20FINAL%20with%20chart.pdf


5 
 
 
 

water identified in 1-5, above, in which they are determined on a case-specific basis to 
have a significant nexus to a water in 1-3, above. 

 
Paxton, who is joined by the attorneys general of the States of Louisiana and Mississippi, 
contends that the new rule is a “blatant overstep of federal authority” and that the EPA’s actions 
are inconsistent with U.S. Supreme Court precedent. He also claims that the rule is contrary to 
the congressional intent of the Clean Water Act and infringes on the states’ ability to regulate 
their own natural resources. 
 
The rule and the lawsuit, like many water-related issues, divide city officials based on their 
location, natural resources, and basis for their economy. As such, the League will be limited to 
monitoring and reporting on further developments. 
 
 

Resolutions for the 2015 TML Annual Conference 
 
The legislative efforts of TML are guided by its members.  That guidance comes in the form of 
resolutions that are submitted by member cities, TML regions, TML affiliates, and TML 
committees.  If your city has a legislative issue that it would like TML to consider, please submit 
it in accordance with the following instructions.   
 
The TML Constitution states that resolutions for consideration at the Annual Conference must be 
submitted to the TML headquarters 45 calendar days prior to the first day of the Annual 
Conference. For 2015, this provision means that resolutions from any member city, TML region, 
or TML affiliate must arrive at the TML headquarters no later than 5:00 p.m. on August 10, 
2015. 
 
The TML Board of Directors has adopted several procedures governing the resolutions process. 
Please review the following items carefully and thoroughly. 

 
1. No resolution may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee 

unless it has prior approval of: (a) the governing body of a TML member 
city; (b) the governing body or membership of a TML affiliate, or (c) the 
membership of a TML region at a regional meeting. 

2. TML member cities, regions, and affiliates that wish to submit a resolution 
must complete a resolution cover sheet. The cover sheet is available here. 
Please feel free to make as many copies of this cover sheet as you desire.  
The cover sheet must be attached to the resolution throughout each step of 
the resolutions process. 

3. It is recommended that any resolution state one of four categories to better 
direct League staff.  Those categories are: 

 
 Seek Introduction and Passage means that the League will attempt to 

find a sponsor, will provide testimony, and will otherwise actively 
pursue passage. Bills in this category are known as “TML bills.”   

http://www.tml.org/p/2015%20Resolution%20Cover%20sheet.doc


6 
 
 
 

 Support means the League will attempt to obtain passage of the 
initiative if it is introduced by a city or some other entity.  

 Oppose. 
 Take No Position. 
 
Please see the 2015-2016 TML Legislative Policy Development Process 
for more information. 

4. Resolutions submitted will be thoroughly discussed at the TML Annual 
Conference.  The Resolutions Committee is appointed by the TML 
President and is made up of city officials from TML member cities across 
the state. 

5. The city, region, or affiliate that submits a resolution is encouraged to send 
a representative to the Resolutions Committee meeting to explain the 
resolution. The Resolutions Committee will meet at 2:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday, September 22, 2015, at the Henry B. Gonzalez Center in San 
Antonio. 

 
If the procedures described above are not followed for any given resolution, that resolution is 
likely to be referred to some other TML committee for further study. In that case, the resolution 
would not be adopted during the 2015 conference. 
 
Under the TML Constitution, resolutions received after the deadline of August 10, 2015, must 
not only have the attached cover sheet, but also must “state the reason precluding timely 
submission.” These late resolutions may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee at 
the Annual Conference only if two-thirds of the Committee members present and voting agree to 
suspend the submission rule and consider the resolution. 
 
Resolutions may be submitted by mail, fax, or email to Scott Houston, Deputy Executive 
Director and General Counsel, at: 
 
1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400 
Austin, Texas  78754 
Fax: 512-231-7490 
Email:  shouston@tml.org 
 
If you have any questions or would like any assistance, please call 512-231-7400 at any time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 

person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 

http://www.tml.org/p/2015_TML_Policy_Process.pdf
mailto:shouston@tml.org


1 
 
 
 

 
July 10, 2015 

Number 27 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Upcoming Contract Disclosure Requirements: 
League Asks Texas Ethics Commission for Clarification  

 
House Bill 1295, passed during the recent legislative session, imposes new disclosure 
requirements on city contracts.  All of the consequences for cities are currently unknown, but the 
League has asked the Texas Ethics Commission (TEC) to address some of theses issues in its 
impending rulemaking process.   
 
House Bill 1295 provides that: (1) certain governmental entities, including cities, are prohibited 
from entering into a contract with a business entity unless the business entity submits a 
disclosure of interested parties (i.e., discloses a person who has a controlling interest in the 
business or who actively participates in facilitating the contract for the business) if the contract: 
(a) requires an action or vote by the governing body before the contract may be signed; or (b) the 
contract has a value of at least $1 million; (2) the disclosure must be on a form prescribed by the 
TEC; and (3) a governmental entity must, not later than 30 days after receiving a disclosure, 
submit a copy to the TEC.   
 
These new requirements apply only to city contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2016.  
However, the TEC is charged with adopting rules to implement the bill’s requirements no later 
than December 1, 2015.  The League has sent the TEC a letter prior to the beginning of the 
formal rulemaking process.  The hope is that the TEC will consider the following questions prior 
to publishing the rules for formal comments:  
 

http://www.capitol.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/pdf/HB01295F.pdf#navpanes=0


2 
 
 
 

 What are the consequences if a city fails to submit a copy of the disclosure to the TEC? 
Or fails to timely submit a copy of the disclosure to the TEC? 

 Does the disclosure requirement apply to a contract that is renewed on or after January 1, 
2016, but that was initially executed prior to that date? 

 What does it mean to “enter into a contract” with a business entity?  Does that phrase 
include any action that requires the signatures of all the parties to the contract (e.g., 
renewal of a contract, amendment of a contract)?   

 Does the disclosure requirement apply when the city council has delegated authority to 
execute a contract to an employee such as the city manager?   

 Must/may a disclosure be updated or corrected by a business entity?  If so, under what 
circumstances and within what timeframe? 

 Will the TEC publish or otherwise release a disclosure to the public?  If so, will the TEC 
give a business entity the chance to protect any confidential or proprietary information 
before releasing a disclosure to the public? 

 
Each city should consult its local legal counsel to determine how these new requirements may 
impact the city’s contracting and procurement process.  Member cities are also urged to:  (1) file 
comments and participate in the TEC rulemaking process (the League will publicize that 
comment period, which should be towards the end of 2015); and (2) communicate issues and 
concerns to Christy Drake-Adams, TML legal counsel, at Christy@tml.org so that she can 
coordinate efforts in the rulemaking process.   
 
 

HUD Issues Final Fair Housing Rule 
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has released its final 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH) Rule.  Essentially, the AFFH Rule creates 
additional procedures and requirements for cities that receive HUD funding, including 
Community Development Block Grant funds.   
 
Adopted pursuant to the Fair Housing Act of 1968, the AFFH Rule directs HUD and its program 
participants (e.g., cities, public housing authorities, and others) to affirmatively further the Act’s 
goals of promoting fair housing and equal opportunity. HUD claims the rule “clarifies and 
simplifies existing fair housing obligations for HUD grantees to analyze their fair housing 
landscape and set locally-determined fair housing priorities and goals through an Assessment of 
Fair Housing (AFH).”  To aid communities in this work, HUD will provide open data (such as 
notated maps) to grantees and the public on patterns related to low-income housing.   
 
A city that receives HUD funding will use the data to prepare a report called an assessment of 
fair housing (AFH).  The AFH must contain information related to disparity of access to 
community assets, segregation, racially-concentrated area of poverty, and disproportionate 
housing needs.  A city wil have to prepare and submit the report to HUD in order to receive 
funding.  HUD will provide an AFH assessment tool, which consists of a series of questions 

mailto:Christy@tml.org


3 
 
 
 

designed to help HUS fund recipients identify how best to use HUD funds to promote fair 
housing.   
 
The AFFH Rule and other information are available on HUD’s website.  The final rule adoption 
comes on the heels of the recent U.S. Supreme Court opinion in Texas Department of Housing 

and Community Affairs v. Inclusive Communities Project.  In that opinion, the Court held that 
“disparate impact” claims may be brought under the Fair Housing Act.  In a disparate impact 
case, a plaintiff does not claim that a practice is intentionally discriminatory.  Instead, he claims 
that the practice has a disproportionately adverse impact on a protected class. 
 
In the case, the Inclusive Communities Project (ICP) sued the Texas Department of Housing and 
Community Affairs (TDHCA), claiming that TDHCA’s selection criteria for federal low-income 
tax credits in the City of Dallas had a disparate impact on minorities.  Specifically, ICP claimed 
that TDHCA was giving too many tax credits to low-income housing in predominately black 
inner-city areas compared to predominately white suburban neighborhoods. The case will now 
continue based on the Court’s ruling.   
 
City officials may need to consult with local legal counsel relating to their affordable housing 
activities in light of the opinion and the AFFH Rule. 
 
 

Resolutions for the 2015 TML Annual Conference 
 
The legislative efforts of TML are guided by its members.  That guidance comes in the form of 
resolutions that are submitted by member cities, TML regions, TML affiliates, and TML 
committees.  If your city has a legislative issue that it would like TML to consider, please submit 
it in accordance with the following instructions.   
 
The TML Constitution states that resolutions for consideration at the Annual Conference must be 
submitted to the TML headquarters 45 calendar days prior to the first day of the Annual 
Conference. For 2015, this provision means that resolutions from any member city, TML region, 
or TML affiliate must arrive at the TML headquarters no later than 5:00 p.m. on August 10, 
2015. 
 
The TML Board of Directors has adopted several procedures governing the resolutions process. 
Please review the following items carefully and thoroughly. 

 
1. No resolution may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee 

unless it has prior approval of: (a) the governing body of a TML member 
city; (b) the governing body or membership of a TML affiliate, or (c) the 
membership of a TML region at a regional meeting. 

2. TML member cities, regions, and affiliates that wish to submit a resolution 
must complete a resolution cover sheet. The cover sheet is available here. 
Please feel free to make as many copies of this cover sheet as you desire.  

http://www.huduser.org/portal/affht_pt2.html
http://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/14pdf/13-1371_m64o.pdf
http://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/14pdf/13-1371_m64o.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/2015%20Resolution%20Cover%20sheet.doc


4 
 
 
 

The cover sheet must be attached to the resolution throughout each step of 
the resolutions process. 

3. It is recommended that any resolution state one of four categories to better 
direct League staff.  Those categories are: 

 
 Seek Introduction and Passage means that the League will attempt to 

find a sponsor, will provide testimony, and will otherwise actively 
pursue passage. Bills in this category are known as “TML bills.”   

 Support means the League will attempt to obtain passage of the 
initiative if it is introduced by a city or some other entity.  

 Oppose. 
 Take No Position. 
 
Please see the 2015-2016 TML Legislative Policy Development Process 
for more information. 

4. Resolutions submitted will be thoroughly discussed at the TML Annual 
Conference.  The Resolutions Committee is appointed by the TML 
President and is made up of city officials from TML member cities across 
the state. 

5. The city, region, or affiliate that submits a resolution is encouraged to send 
a representative to the Resolutions Committee meeting to explain the 
resolution. The Resolutions Committee will meet at 2:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday, September 22, 2015, at the Henry B. Gonzalez Center in San 
Antonio. 

 
If the procedures described above are not followed for any given resolution, that resolution is 
likely to be referred to some other TML committee for further study. In that case, the resolution 
would not be adopted during the 2015 conference. 
 
Under the TML Constitution, resolutions received after the deadline of August 10, 2015, must 
not only have the attached cover sheet, but also must “state the reason precluding timely 
submission.” These late resolutions may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee at 
the Annual Conference only if two-thirds of the Committee members present and voting agree to 
suspend the submission rule and consider the resolution. 
 
Resolutions may be submitted by mail, fax, or email to Scott Houston, Deputy Executive 
Director and General Counsel, at: 
 
1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400 
Austin, Texas  78754 
Fax: 512-231-7490 
Email:  shouston@tml.org 
 
If you have any questions or would like any assistance, please call 512-231-7400 at any time. 
 

http://www.tml.org/p/2015_TML_Policy_Process.pdf
mailto:shouston@tml.org


1 
 
 
 

 
July 17, 2015 

Number 28 
 
 
 

Oil and Gas Regulation Clearinghouse 
 
The House version of the oil and gas drilling bill, H.B. 40 by Rep. Drew Darby, became law on 
May 18, 2015, when it was signed by Governor Abbott.  The final version of the bill represents a 
compromise between the Texas Municipal League and the Texas Oil and Gas Association.   
 
The final version of the bill improves on the original bill in four significant ways.  Specifically, 
it: 
 

1. enshrines in statute a non-inclusive list of items cities can regulate, including 
fire and emergency response, traffic, lights, noise, notice, and reasonable 
setbacks.  (The inclusion of setbacks is a key component because the original 
version of the bill likely prevented them.)  

2. permits cities to regulate aboveground activity that is “related” to oil and gas 
operations, as opposed to activities that are “incident” to operations, as in the 
original version of the bill.  The “incident to” language was prohibitively 
restrictive.  

3. includes a much better definition of “commercially reasonable,” one of the 
tests an ordinance must meet to be valid under the bill.  The final version 
provides that commercially reasonable is based on an objective standard 
instead of the subjective assessment of a particular oil and gas operator. 

4. creates a “prima facie” presumption of commercial reasonableness for certain 
ordinances that have allowed activity for at least five years.  This “safe 
harbor” is a rolling five-year time period that permits recent or future 
ordinances to qualify so long as they haven’t prevented operations for a five-
year period.   

 
Make no mistake:  The bill isn’t perfect.  Some areas of regulation, especially those related to 
subsurface activity, may be preempted. So would outright city-wide bans on oil and drilling or 

http://www.capitol.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/pdf/HB00040F.pdf#navpanes=0


2 
 
 
 

fracking.  But here’s the essential point:  better than 80% of what most cities regulate under 

current ordinances is protected.  
 
City officials should be aware that adoption or amendment of any ordinance regulating oil and 
gas operations should be in conformity with H.B. 40.  Likewise, the League will closely monitor 
the industry to ensure that the various safe harbor provisions permitted by the bill are respected 
by operators and their representatives. To assist cities, the League has created an “Oil and Gas 
Regulation” webpage at www.tml.org (Go to the Legal tab and click on the Topics drop down 
menu).   
 
The page will include the pleadings in each lawsuit that has been filed, as well as additional 
information.  The page will not include “sample” or “model” ordinances.  That’s because each 
city’s needs and wants are unique, and also because the commercial reasonableness of various 
ordinance provisions will vary by geography and the level of drilling activity.   
 
Thankfully, all appears quiet on the litigation front thus far.  The only lawsuit pleadings on the 
page right now relates to the essentially moot challenge against the City of Denton’s now-
defunct hydraulic fracturing ban.  Each city should consult with local legal counsel prior to 
adopting or amending any ordinance.  That is particularly true in this instance. 
 
 

Update:  E-Cigarettes 
 
As is often the case with novel issues impacting the public health and safety, cities preceded both 
the state and federal government in enacting regulations regarding electronic cigarettes (e-
cigarettes).  City e-cigarette ordinances generally impose: (1) zoning regulations; and/or (2) 
health and safety regulations (e.g., they often prohibit the sale and distribution to minors).  In 
light of impending regulations at the state and federal level, your city may soon need to revisit its 
existing e-cigarette regulations. 
 
What has state government done?  Senate Bill 97, passed during the recent legislative session, is 
by far the most significant step the State of Texas has taken on this matter.  That bill includes e-
cigarettes in the existing state regulations that govern the sale, distribution, possession, use, and 
advertising of cigarettes and other tobacco products.  Though the bill is not effective until 
October 1, 2015, the state comptroller must make related signage available to the public by 
September 15, 2015.  Of particular interest to cities is the bill’s state law ban on the sale of e-
cigarettes to minors.   
 
The bill did not add e-cigarettes to Section 161.089 of the Texas Health and Safety, a current-law 
provision that deals with the preemption of local laws.  That section allows cities to enact 
regulations relating to the sale, distribution, or use of cigarettes or tobacco products if the 
regulation is compatible with and equal to or more stringent than a requirement prescribed by 
state law.  Because city e-cigarette regulations are neither permitted nor prohibited by the new or 
existing legislation, whether a city can regulate them is unclear. Thus, each city needs to consult 
its local legal counsel to determine whether Senate Bill 97 preempts any of its local regulations. 

http://www.tml.org/
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/HS/htm/HS.161.htm#161.089


3 
 
 
 

 
Perhaps in anticipation of Senate Bill 97 becoming effective, state agencies have begun to 
address e-cigarettes.  For instance, the Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ) recently 
proposed rules that add the use of vapor products to the TDCJ Tobacco Policy. 
 
What has the federal government done? In 2014, the Federal Drug Administration (FDA) 
proposed a rule that will allow the FDA to regulate products such as e-cigarettes, nicotine gels, 
and other products under the Federal Tobacco Control Act.  You can follow the status of that 
rulemaking and find additional information about the FDA’s regulation of e-cigarettes here:   
http://www.fda.gov/NewsEvents/PublicHealthFocus/ucm172906.htm.   
 
For the time being at least, the action remains at the state and local level.  The League will 
continue to monitor this issue and report any important federal regulatory developments.   
 
 

Lt. Governor Appoints Select Transportation Committee 
 
Lt. Governor Patrick announced the appointment of the Senate Select Committee on 
Transportation Planning. The committee created by H.B. 20 will study issues related to 
transportation planning, financing and performance, and the Texas Department of 
Transportation’s (TxDOT) collaboration with stakeholders such as elected officials, local 
governments, and metropolitan planning organizations.  The committee is as follows: 
 
Sen. Robert Nichols  (R – Jacksonville), Chair 
Sen. Bob Hall (R – Mesquite) 
Sen. Juan “Chuy” Hinojosa (D – McAllen)  
Sen. Joan Huffman (R – Houston)  
Sen. Charles Perry (R – Lubbock) 
 
The League will continue to monitor the committee hearings and provide necessary information 
to cities.  
 

 

Reed v. Town of Gilbert: 
Does Your Sign Ordinance Need Updating? 

  
Reed v. Town of Gilbert is the recent U.S. Supreme Court opinion that calls into question certain 
content-related sign ordinance provisions.  A previous Legislative Update article explained the 
holding in more detail.  A number of national organizations will be conducting webinars for city 
officials about the case in the coming days: 
 

 July 20:   International Municipal Lawyers Association webinar 
 July 21:   Planning & Law Division of the American Planning Association webinar 
 August 19:   State and Local Legal Center webinar 

http://www.fda.gov/NewsEvents/PublicHealthFocus/ucm172906.htm
http://www.capitol.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/pdf/HB00020F.pdf#navpanes=0
http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/us-supreme-court-further-restricts-municipal-sign-regulations
http://www.imla.org/webinars/2015-calendar
https://www.planning.org/store/product/?ProductCode=EVENT_PLD0715&utm_source=RLUIPA+Defense&utm_campaign=a5cd449d3c-RSS_EMAIL_CAMPAIGN&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_baf0b0c430-a5cd449d3c-148714785
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7566733836947059201


4 
 
 
 

 
Resolutions for the 2015 TML Annual Conference 

 
The legislative efforts of TML are guided by its members.  That guidance comes in the form of 
resolutions that are submitted by member cities, TML regions, TML affiliates, and TML 
committees.  If your city has a legislative issue that it would like TML to consider, please submit 
it in accordance with the following instructions.   
 
The TML Constitution states that resolutions for consideration at the Annual Conference must be 
submitted to the TML headquarters 45 calendar days prior to the first day of the Annual 
Conference. For 2015, this provision means that resolutions from any member city, TML region, 
or TML affiliate must arrive at the TML headquarters no later than 5:00 p.m. on August 10, 
2015. 
 
The TML Board of Directors has adopted several procedures governing the resolutions process. 
Please review the following items carefully and thoroughly. 

 
1. No resolution may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee 

unless it has prior approval of: (a) the governing body of a TML member 
city; (b) the governing body or membership of a TML affiliate, or (c) the 
membership of a TML region at a regional meeting. 

2. TML member cities, regions, and affiliates that wish to submit a resolution 
must complete a resolution cover sheet. The cover sheet is available here. 
Please feel free to make as many copies of this cover sheet as you desire.  
The cover sheet must be attached to the resolution throughout each step of 
the resolutions process. 

3. It is recommended that any resolution state one of four categories to better 
direct League staff.  Those categories are: 

 
 Seek Introduction and Passage means that the League will attempt to 

find a sponsor, will provide testimony, and will otherwise actively 
pursue passage. Bills in this category are known as “TML bills.”   

 Support means the League will attempt to obtain passage of the 
initiative if it is introduced by a city or some other entity.  

 Oppose. 
 Take No Position. 
 
Please see the 2015-2016 TML Legislative Policy Development Process 
for more information. 

4. Resolutions submitted will be thoroughly discussed at the TML Annual 
Conference.  The Resolutions Committee is appointed by the TML 
President and is made up of city officials from TML member cities across 
the state. 

http://www.tml.org/p/2015%20Resolution%20Cover%20sheet.doc
http://www.tml.org/p/2015_TML_Policy_Process.pdf


5 
 
 
 

5. The city, region, or affiliate that submits a resolution is encouraged to send 
a representative to the Resolutions Committee meeting to explain the 
resolution. The Resolutions Committee will meet at 2:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday, September 22, 2015, at the Henry B. Gonzalez Center in San 
Antonio. 

 
If the procedures described above are not followed for any given resolution, that resolution is 
likely to be referred to some other TML committee for further study. In that case, the resolution 
would not be adopted during the 2015 conference. 
 
Under the TML Constitution, resolutions received after the deadline of August 10, 2015, must 
not only have the attached cover sheet, but also must “state the reason precluding timely 
submission.” These late resolutions may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee at 
the Annual Conference only if two-thirds of the Committee members present and voting agree to 
suspend the submission rule and consider the resolution. 
 
Resolutions may be submitted by mail, fax, or email to Scott Houston, Deputy Executive 
Director and General Counsel, at: 
 
1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400 
Austin, Texas  78754 
Fax: 512-231-7490 
Email:  shouston@tml.org 
 
If you have any questions or would like any assistance, please call 512-231-7400 at any time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 

person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 

mailto:shouston@tml.org


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

RESOLUTION 15-753 

 

DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

AMENDMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 20, 2015 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
  
FROM: JASON  STUEBE, CITY SECRETARY  
 
RE:    JULY 23, 2015 COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #3 – DOWNTOWN    
  IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 
As you will recall, the City Council adopted a resolution in April which established the 
Downtown Improvement Program.  At that meeting the proposed program was amended to 
restrict the program to owner-occupied properties by imposing a three (3) year longevity proviso.  
At the same meeting the eligibility for commercial properties was also removed.   
 
Since the adoption of the program, we have received a fair amount of interest in the program, 
however, most of the interest has been for improving commercial properties in the downtown 
area and to date only one eligible owner-occupied residential project has been submitted.   
 
As such, staff is recommending that the program be expanded.  Proposed in this agenda item are 
two options for the Council’s consideration: 
 
 Option 1: Amend the program opening it up to all residential properties by removing 
   the three (3) year longevity period.   
 
 Option 2: Amend the program by opening it up to all residential properties by  
   removing the three (3) year longevity period AND extending eligibility to  
   commercial properties as well, not including places of worship.  Further,  
   the amount allocated for the program would be restricted to no more than  
   30% disbursed towards commercial properties unless otherwise authorized 
   by the City Council. 
 
You will find that there are two separate resolutions as part of this agenda item addressing both 
options.  The Council essentially has three choices – it may elect to make no changes at the 
meeting; it may choose to adopt the first option by resolution; or it may choose to adopt the 
second option by resolution.  The Council will simply need to clearly state which Resolution it is 
willing to approve at the meeting, should you wish to do so.   

114 WEST HIGGINS ● HUMBLE, TEXAS ● 77338 ● (281) 446-3061 ● FAX (281) 446-7843 

OFFICE OF THE 
CITY SECRETARY 



“EXHIBIT A” 

CITY OF HUMBLE DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
AREA BOUNDARIES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-753 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS AMENDING THE 
DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM GUIDLINES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Humble adopted Resolution Number 15-747 on April 9, 2015 establishing a 

Downtown Improvement Program; adopting Program Guidelines; adopting Program 
Application and adopting the Program Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Improvement Program as adopted restricted projects to be owner occupied 

residences by requiring owner occupancy at the project property for no fewer than three 
(3) years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the program to allow eligibility to all residential 

dwellings in the prescribed area by removing the owner-occupied provision. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 
 
Section 1:  That the Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines are hereby amended by 

removing Section 3 “Longevity” and are  attached hereto as Exhibit “A” including 
appendices thereto, save and except such portions as are hereinafter deleted, 
modified or amended, and to the same extent are hereby adopted and incorporated 
as fully as if set out at length herein. 

 
Section 2. In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or 

part of this Resolution or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 
for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part 
of provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the 
City Council of the City of Humble, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and 
every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts. 

 
Section 3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this the 23rd day of July 2015. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
            
      Merle Aaron 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 



1 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

 
 

CITY OF HUMBLE 
DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
General 

 The City Council of the City of Humble has determined that adopting a downtown 

improvement program benefits its citizens and the wellbeing of the general public by 

encouraging and securing residences within a defined area to improve and increase 

their stability, improvement and overall quality.  The City of Humble (“City”) desires to 

enhance and promote its downtown area through this matching grant program designed 

to visually improve and beautify the exterior appearances of property and buildings 

within a defined geographical area. 

 

 The City intends to budget a certain amount annually to be disbursed in 

accordance with these guidelines.  The City Manager or his designee (“City Manager”) 

shall administer this program in a manner consistent with the criteria set forth herein. 

 

Eligibility 

 Eligibility requirements include the following: 

1. Location. The applicant is a residence, not including commercial businesses 

or places of worship located within a geographic area bounded more or less 

by Rail Road Avenue to the West, Fisher Rd to the South, S. Houston Avenue 

to the East and 7th Street to the North as further depicted on a map attached 

herto as Exhibit “A.”  The City Manager reserves the right to review, accept 

and approve applications received from properties immediately adjacent to 

this area.  

 

2. Type of Improvement.  The nature of the proposed improvement should be 

viewable from a public right of way or otherwise enhance the overall outward 

appearance of the property, and may include the following or similar type 

improvements as determined by the City Manager to meet the general 

provisions of these guidelines:  

a. Building improvements such as  



2 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

i. façade improvements to a building on the property such as 

significant cleaning, restoration or new masonry or other form of 

building finish; 

ii. Awnings; 

iii. Window and door replacement or modification; 

iv. New or restored detail elements such as cornices, soffits, 

canopies or similar details; 

b. Property improvements such as 

i. Sidewalks, outdoor furniture, railing and other appropriate 

pedestrian friendly amenities; 

ii. Outdoor lighting; 

iii. Parking lot or driveway development, improvement, resurfacing 

and striping; 

iv. Fencing;  

c. Removal of debris, dilapidated structure, demolition, etc. 

 

3. Authorization.  The applicant must be the owner of all the property towards 

which the grant relates.   

 

4. Good Standing.  The applicant and the property must be in good standing 

with the City, current on all monies due the City and not involved in a lawsuit 

or other legal actions against the City. 

 

5. Cash Expenditures.  Only applicant’s actual cash expenditures may be used 

as a grant match to receive City funds but in kind services may be considered 

for applicant’s match. 

 

Not Eligible 

 The following are not eligible under this program:  

1. Signs.  Signs or improvements to signs unless falling under a category of 

approved improvements, such as an awning that has a company logo. 

 

2. Landscaping.  Such as shrubs, ground covers, palms, landscape lighting, 

rocks, pebbles, sand and irrigation systems. 

 

3. Non-permanent.  Annual flowers and other nonpermanent or nondurable 

improvements to the property. 

 



3 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

4. False Information.  Misleading or false information provided by the applicant 

to the City which formed the basis of approval. 

 

5. Change.  A change as to the status of the property, the project or the 

applicant such that the project no longer meets the guidelines.  

 

6. Maintenance.  Routine maintenance. 

 

7. Legal action.  Any project or property that is the subject of an interim action or 

other legal proceeding that unreasonably jeopardizes the purpose of the grant 

in the judgment of the City Manager. 

 

8. Properties that have been awarded a previous Improvement Program Grant 

from the City of Humble. 

 

If approval of an application was made and subsequent to such approval one or more of 

the above occurs before the project is complete and application for reimbursement is 

made, such reimbursement may be denied.    

 

Funding 

1.  Amount.  Qualifying applicants may be approved for a matching grant to a 

maximum amount of $10,000 plus reimbursement of some or all City permit 

fees relating to the project.   

2. Budget.  Each year the City Council may allocate monies to this program, and 

the total amount of grants may be limited to this allocation.   

3. Disbursement.  The funds will be disbursed by the City Manager in 

accordance with these guidelines who will approve projects on a case by 

case basis.   

 

Criteria for Granting  

1. General. Criteria for granting funding under this program will be based upon 

availability of funds, capability of applicant to perform, visual impact, 

economic impact and other relevant factors.   

 

2. Visual Impact.  Factors affecting visual impact include the amount of 

improvement in the attractiveness of the property, the level of blight or 

deterioration removed, tastefulness and/or compatibility with surrounding 

properties, level of impact on overall appearance of the property and the 

productive life of improvements.   

 



4 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

 

3. Economic Impact. Factors affecting economic impact include the amount of 

additional funding expended by the applicant, appropriateness of the 

residential improvement to the overall economic development in the area, 

mitigation of health and safety issues, and reuse of vacant or underutilized 

property. 

 

4. City Manager.  The City Manager has utmost discretion and makes all 

decisions with regard to the approval or disapproval of applications.  By 

submitting an application, applicants accept that the decisions of the City 

Manager may involve subjective judgment and that all determinations by the 

City Manager are final. 

  

Procedure 

 A summary of the procedure is as follows: 

1. Application.  An application must be made on a form provided by the City, 

must conform to all requirements set forth in the application, and the 

completed application submitted to the City Manager. 

 

2. Contract.  If the application is approved by the City Manager under this 

program, the applicant will be asked to enter into a contract on a form 

prescribed by the City.  The City reserves the right to award an applicant a 

grant with certain additional provisions, conditions, or other requirements and 

may waive certain requirements as the City Manager determines appropriate 

and in keeping with these Guidelines.  

 

3. Project.  The project is undertaken by applicant.  The City has the right to 

inspect the property throughout the duration of the project during reasonable 

times and conditions, and may require an inspection before reimbursement. 

 

4.  Reimbursement.   Upon satisfactory proof that the project has been 

successfully completed as determined by the City Manager, applicant 

receives reimbursement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

 

Notice 

1. The provision or delivery of these guidelines to an interested party does 

not constitute nor create an offer of improvement grant, a property right, a 

contract, or other legal right requiring the City to provide funding. 

 

2. The adoption of these guidelines does not limit the discretion of the City to 

decide whether to provide or not provide a grant to an applicant, which 

absolute right of discretion the City reserves unto itself, whether or not 

such discretion may be deemed arbitrary or without basis in fact. 

 

3. The City, its employees, and its agents do not attest to the quality, safety, 

or construction of a project eligible for, or receiving grant funding and shall 

be held harmless by the applicant/applicants for any and all damages 

associated with the planning, construction, and subsequent existence of 

any project whose application has been approved, or has received actual 

grant funding. 

 

 

   



CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-753 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS AMENDING THE 
DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM GUIDLINES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Humble adopted Resolution Number 15-747 on April 9, 2015 establishing a 

Downtown Improvement Program; adopting Program Guidelines; adopting Program 
Application and adopting the Program Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Improvement Program as adopted restricted projects to be owner occupied 

residences by requiring owner occupancy at the project property for no fewer than three 
(3) years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Improvement Program as adopted did not permit eligibility to commercial 

properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the program to allow eligibility to all residential 

dwellings in the prescribed area by removing the owner-occupied provision and all 
commercial properties in the prescribed area. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 
 
Section 1:  That the Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines are hereby amended by 

removing Section 3 “Longevity.” 
 
Section 2: That the Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines are hereby amended by 

permitting commercial businesses, not including places of worship to be eligible 
for the Program.” 

 
Section 3: That no more than 70% of the annual budgeted amount for the Program shall be 

disbursed for residential projects or no more than 30% of the annual budgeted 
amount for the Program shall be disbursed for commercial projects unless 
otherwise authorized by the City Council. 

 
Section 4: That the amended Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines are  attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” including appendices thereto, save and except such portions 
as are hereinafter deleted, modified or amended, and to the same extent are hereby 
adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein.  

 
Section 5. In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or 

part of this Resolution or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 
for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part 
of provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the 
City Council of the City of Humble, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and 
every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts. 

 



Section 6. That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this the 23rd day of July 2015. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
            
      Merle Aaron 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 



1 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

 
 

CITY OF HUMBLE 
DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
General 

 The City Council of the City of Humble has determined that adopting a downtown 

improvement program benefits its citizens and the wellbeing of the general public by 

encouraging and securing businesses and residences within a defined area to improve 

and increase their stability, improvement and overall quality.  The City of Humble (“City”) 

desires to enhance and promote its downtown area through this matching grant 

program designed to visually improve and beautify the exterior appearances of property 

and buildings within a defined geographical area. 

 

 The City intends to budget a certain amount annually to be disbursed in 

accordance with these guidelines.  Unless otherwise authorized by the City Council, no 

more than 70% of the annual budgeted amount shall be disbursed to residential projects 

and no more than 30% of the annual budgeted amount shall be disbursed to 

commercial projects.  The City Manager or his designee (“City Manager”) shall 

administer this program in a manner consistent with the criteria set forth herein. 

 

Eligibility 

 Eligibility requirements include the following: 

1. Location. The applicant is a commercial business or residence, not including 

places of worship located within a geographic area bounded more or less by 

Rail Road Avenue to the West, Fisher Rd to the South, S. Houston Avenue to 

the East and 7th Street to the North as further depicted on a map attached 

herto as Exhibit “A.”  The City Manager reserves the right to review, accept 

and approve applications received from properties immediately adjacent to 

this area.  

 

2. Type of Improvement.  The nature of the proposed improvement should be 

viewable from a public right of way or otherwise enhance the overall outward 

appearance of the property, and may include the following or similar type 

improvements as determined by the City Manager to meet the general 

provisions of these guidelines:  



2 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

a. Building improvements such as  

i. façade improvements to a building on the property such as 

significant cleaning, restoration or new masonry or other form of 

building finish; 

ii. Awnings; 

iii. Window and door replacement or modification; 

iv. New or restored detail elements such as cornices, soffits, 

canopies or similar details; 

b. Property improvements such as 

i. Sidewalks, outdoor furniture, railing and other appropriate 

pedestrian friendly amenities; 

ii. Outdoor lighting; 

iii. Parking lot or driveway development, improvement, resurfacing 

and striping; 

iv. Fencing;  

c. Removal of debris, dilapidated structure, demolition, etc. 

3. Authorization.  The applicant must be either the owner or the lessee of all the 

property towards which the grant relates.  Applications by lessees must have 

the approval of the owner as well. 

 

4. Good Standing.  The applicant and the property must be in good standing 

with the City, current on all monies due the City and not involved in a lawsuit 

or other legal actions against the City. 

 

5. Cash Expenditures.  Only applicant’s actual cash expenditures may be used 

as a grant match to receive City funds but in kind services may be considered 

for applicant’s match. 

 

Not Eligible 

 The following are not eligible under this program:  

1. Signs.  Signs or improvements to signs unless falling under a category of 

approved improvements, such as an awning that has a company logo. 

 

2. Landscaping.  Such as shrubs, ground covers, palms, landscape lighting, 

rocks, pebbles, sand and irrigation systems. 

 

3. Non-permanent.  Annual flowers and other nonpermanent or nondurable 

improvements to the property. 

 



3 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

4. False Information.  Misleading or false information provided by the applicant 

to the City which formed the basis of approval. 

 

5. Change.  A change as to the status of the property, the project or the 

applicant such that the project no longer meets the guidelines.  

 

6. Maintenance.  Routine maintenance. 

 

7. Legal action.  Any project or property that is the subject of an interim action or 

other legal proceeding that unreasonably jeopardizes the purpose of the grant 

in the judgment of the City Manager. 

 

8. Properties that have been awarded a previous Improvement Program Grant 

from the City of Humble. 

 

If approval of an application was made and subsequent to such approval one or more of 

the above occurs before the project is complete and application for reimbursement is 

made, such reimbursement may be denied.    

 

Funding 

1.  Amount.  Qualifying applicants may be approved for a matching grant to a 

maximum amount of $10,000 plus reimbursement of some or all City permit 

fees relating to the project.   

2. Budget.  Each year the City Council may allocate monies to this program, and 

the total amount of grants may be limited to this allocation.   

3. Disbursement.  The funds will be disbursed by the City Manager in 

accordance with these guidelines who will approve projects on a case by 

case basis.   

 

Criteria for Granting  

1. General. Criteria for granting funding under this program will be based upon 

availability of funds, capability of applicant to perform, visual impact, 

economic impact and other relevant factors.   

 

2. Visual Impact.  Factors affecting visual impact include the amount of 

improvement in the attractiveness of the property, the level of blight or 

deterioration removed, tastefulness and/or compatibility with surrounding 

properties, level of impact on overall appearance of the property and the 

productive life of improvements.   



4 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

3. Economic Impact. Factors affecting economic impact include the amount of 

additional funding expended by the applicant, appropriateness of the 

business improvement to the overall economic development in the area, 

mitigation of health and safety issues, and reuse of vacant or underutilized 

property. 

 

4. City Manager.  The City Manager has utmost discretion and makes all 

decisions with regard to the approval or disapproval of applications.  By 

submitting an application, applicants accept that the decisions of the City 

Manager may involve subjective judgment and that all determinations by the 

City Manager are final. 

  

Procedure 

 A summary of the procedure is as follows: 

1. Application.  An application must be made on a form provided by the City, 

must conform to all requirements set forth in the application, and the 

completed application submitted to the City Manager. 

 

2. Contract.  If the application is approved by the City Manager under this 

program, the applicant will be asked to enter into a contract on a form 

prescribed by the City.  The City reserves the right to award an applicant a 

grant with certain additional provisions, conditions, or other requirements and 

may waive certain requirements as the City Manager determines appropriate 

and in keeping with these Guidelines.  

 

3. Project.  The project is undertaken by applicant.  The City has the right to 

inspect the property throughout the duration of the project during reasonable 

times and conditions, and may require an inspection before reimbursement. 

 

4.  Reimbursement.   Upon satisfactory proof that the project has been 

successfully completed as determined by the City Manager, applicant 

receives reimbursement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 
Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines 
 

Notice 

1. The provision or delivery of these guidelines to an interested party does 

not constitute nor create an offer of improvement grant, a property right, a 

contract, or other legal right requiring the City to provide funding. 

 

2. The adoption of these guidelines does not limit the discretion of the City to 

decide whether to provide or not provide a grant to an applicant, which 

absolute right of discretion the City reserves unto itself, whether or not 

such discretion may be deemed arbitrary or without basis in fact. 

 

3. The City, its employees, and its agents do not attest to the quality, safety, 

or construction of a project eligible for, or receiving grant funding and shall 

be held harmless by the applicant/applicants for any and all damages 

associated with the planning, construction, and subsequent existence of 

any project whose application has been approved, or has received actual 

grant funding. 

 

 

   



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

HGSD INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





                                                       INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

This Interlocal Agreement ("Agreement") entered into by and between the Harris-Galveston
Subsidence District, a body corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas ("Subsidence District") and 
Humble, City of, also a body corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas ("Sponsor").

WITNESSETH:

          THAT WHEREAS , the Subsidence District is the regulatory agency responsible for preventing
subsidence through reduction of groundwater withdrawals, governed by Chapter 8801, Special District
Local Laws Code, which specifically provides that the Subsidence District may cooperate with "any local
government to establish water conservation goals, guidelines, and plans to be used within the district";
and

WHEREAS , the Subsidence District cannot achieve water conservation goals without the
cooperation and assistance of the public water supply systems; and

WHEREAS , the Subsidence District has designed a project to achieve water conservation
through the retrofit of plumbing fixtures combined with a strong educational component administered
through the public schools; and

WHEREAS , this project, "Learning to be Water Wise" has been tested in several area schools;
and

WHEREAS , the plumbing retrofit devices used as part of this Project have been tested in the
Municipal Utility District No. 55 Project, jointIy sponsored by that District, the Texas Water
Development Board, and the Subsidence District, and have demonstrated an average savings of 1,400
gallons of water per month; and

WHEREAS , the Sponsor is also dedicated to conserving water supplies and providing
outstanding service to their customers and taxpayers; and

          WHEREAS , the governing bodies of the Subsidence District and the Sponsor have duly
authorized this Agreement; and

          WHEREAS , this Agreement is made pursuant to Chapter 791, Tex. Gov. Code, the Interlocal
Cooperation Act;

          NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and representations
herein contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

                                                                                    I.

                                                             PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

1.01     The Subsidence District will coordinate the Project by doing the following tasks:

          (A) Purchase and distribute the school curriculum kits, including the teacher's guide, teaching

aids, and plumbing retrofit kits.

THE STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF HARRIS §

Interlocal Agreement Page 1



          (B) Provide in-service training to teachers and provide all support functions such as slide
presentations, video presentations, publications, and program outlines.

          (C) Conduct an evaluation of the program, collecting and analyzing evaluation forms from
teachers, students, administrators and parents, and provide the evaluation results to the Sponsor.

          (D) Provide all necessary documentation to the Texas Education Agency, Texas Water
Development Board, and Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.

1.02      The Subsidence District will maintain a Groundwater Bank and shall provide water
conservation credits as follows:

          (A) The Sponsor shall receive a Certificate of Deposit water conservation credit equal to 84,000

gallons of groundwater (which equals 1,400 gallons per month for five years) for each student sponsored.

          (B) The Sponsor may hold, transfer, sell, or redeem the Certificates of Deposit at any time,
provided however, that the Certificates of Deposit will be honored by the District for no longer than 20
years after the date the Certificate of Deposit is issued.

          (C) Redemption of the Certificate of Deposit requires the Subsidence District to increase the

redeemer's groundwater allocation by the amount of the water conservation credit, provided however,
that Certificates of Deposit issued beginning with the 2001-2002 school year (Series B) may only be
applied to a maximum of 30% of the permittee's total water demand. This absolute right to increase the
groundwater allocation by up to 30% of the permittee's total water demand does not in any way affect the
other terms and conditions of the groundwater permit and all groundwater withdrawals will be subject to
the permit fees and other rules of the District in effect at the time of the permit.

1.03     The Subsidence District shall perform all coordination activities without charge to the Sponsor.
The Sponsor may assist in any coordination activities and may participate in any phase of the Project at
its own discretion.

                                                                           II.

                                                                                 PAYMENT

2.01     The sponsor agrees to sponsor 200 Humble ISD students, including students at the following campuses 

which had a total 2014-2015 4th/5th grade enrollment of 179.

Humble Elementary and Lakeland Elementary

2.02     The Sponsor hereby agrees to pay to the Subsidence District, promptly upon receipt of an invoice from the 
Subsidence District, the total amount due, which is equal to $35.40 per student sponsored.  The above payment 
shall provide sponsorship for the above listed school(s) for one year.  The amount of the invoice shall be calculated 

using the actual enrollment in the named schools for each year of the Project.

2.03     From time-to-time the Sponsor may seek to adjust the number of students sponsored by providing
a written request to the Subsidence District, subject to the availability of schools willing to participate in
the project.

2.04     The Sponsor agrees to pay a similar amount, adjusted for the actual cost of the sponsorship kit

and the number of students sponsored, each year for the term of this Agreement.

2.05     This cost represents the sole monetary obligation of the Sponsor in exchange for and in
consideration of the Subsidence District's obligations hereunder.

III.

Interlocal Agreement Page 2



III.

                                                              TERM AND TERMINATION

3.01     The term of this Agreement shall be from the effective date hereof until termination of the
2015-2016 school year. This agreement may be renewed annually with written authorization of the
Sponsor and approval of that authorization by the General Manager of the Subsidence District.

3.02      The Certificates of Deposit in the Groundwater Bank shall be transferred to the custody of the
Sponsor upon receipt of payment from sponsor, and shall be honored by the Subsidence District for no
longer than 20 years after the date the Certificate of Deposit is issued.

                                                                            IV.

                                                                     MISCELLANEOUS

4.01     Subsidence District is engaged as an independent contractor, and all of the services provided for
herein shall be accomplished by Subsidence District in such capacity. The Sponsor will have no control
or supervisory powers as to the detailed manner or method of the Subsidence District's performance of

the subject matter of this Agreement. All personnel supplied or used by the Subsidence District shall be
deemed employees or subcontractors of the Subsidence District and will not be considered employees,
agents or subcontractors of the Sponsor for any purpose whatsoever.

4.02     Each party to the contract is paying for the performance of the contract from current revenues
and will pay for each subsequent year this agreement continues from the revenues budget for that year.
The parties agree that each party is paying fair compensation for the services or products rendered.

4.03     This Agreement merges the prior negotiations and understandings of the parties hereto and
embodies the entire agreement of the parties, and there are not other agreements, assurances, conditions,

covenants (expressed or implied) or other terms with respect to the Project, whether written or verbal,
antecedent or contemporaneous with the execution hereof.

4.04     The Subsidence District shall not assign or delegate any portion of its performance under this
Agreement without the written consent of the Sponsor.

4.05     The Subsidence District shall remain obligated under all clauses of this Agreement that expressly

or by their nature extend beyond the expiration or termination of this Agreement, including the obligation
to honor Certificates of Deposit in the Groundwater Bank as provided in Section 1.02.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties put their hands to this Agreement on the dates indicated
below. This Agreement shall be effective on the date of the last signature hereto.

Interlocal Agreement Page 3



SPONSOR

By:

(Title)

ATTEST:

By:

(Title)

HARRIS-GALVESTON SUBSIDENCE DISTRICT

By:  Robert Thompson, Deputy General  
Manager

Date:  7/14/2015

By:  Greg Ellis, General Counsel

ATTEST:

Interlocal Agreement Page 4



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 3 - ARKK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

 

 
July 17, 2015 
 
 
Mr. Barry K. Brock 
Director of Public Works 
City of Humble 
102 Granberry 
Humble, Texas 77338 
 
Re: Contract Amendment 3 for Engineering Services for Concrete & Asphalt Pavement 

Improvements Project. 

 
Dear Mr. Brock: 
 
As discussed, ARKK Engineering is requesting an amendment to the existing contract for 
performing additional roadway, utility and, signal design at requested locations for work to be 
added to the design of the Concrete and Asphalt Pavement Improvement Projects.   
 
The additional design consist of left turn and right turn lanes on Townsen West, paving, drainage 
and water line along Spring Creek Crossing  to serve a proposed development along Townsen 
West.  The paving improvements will include installing a traffic signal at the intersection of 
Spring Creek Crossing and Townsen West.  
 
The additional design also consists of replacing Main Street from S. Houston Ave. to Davis 
Street.  This work will consist of replacing with roadway with concrete pavement, replacing the 
water line and drainage improvements.  
 
This amendment will also add money to the contract to cover the cost of the sub-contractors 
providing the Traffic Impact Study on Townsen West and the design of the signal improvements 
at Spring Creek Crossing and Townsen West.  
 
 
The adjustment to the contract fees is the addition of the following amounts to the existing 
contract: 
 

Design (Lump Sum)     $  95,500.00 
Traffic Signal Design (Cost plus 10%)  $  44,465.00 
Construction Administration (Hourly)  $  15,000.00 
Total Contract Amendment    $154,965.00 

 
 



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

 

ARKK Engineers appreciates the opportunity the City of Humble has given us and we look 
forward to continuing our work with the City of Humble. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
ARKK Engineers, LLC      Approved By: 
 
 
 
John D. Rudloff, P.E.      _________________________ 
Principal       Darrell Boeske 
        City Manager  



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

COSTCO ACCESS ROAD REIMBURSEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-23-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

NORTHEAST HOSPITAL AUTHORITY BOARD 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 






